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ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2007 BUDGET (C.c. 06-31 and 06-49)

CHAIR KANE: .. .(gavel). .. We'd like to call to order the public hearing here in the
Up country area for March 22nd , 2006, and for the record we have Committee Members
Mateo, Molina, Kane, Pontanilla, Anderson, and Carroll present this evening.
Good evening, Up country. We appreciate your presence this evening. Tonight we are
here to hear your thoughts on the 2007 Proposed Budget by our Mayor which we
received last week on the 15 th , and so we've posted this meeting along with other
meetings to provide you an opportunity to comment on the proposed Budget.
A couple of ground rules so that everybody knows where they're at and how we're gonna
move about. We're going to provide every person who has signed up to testify and some
of you who have doubled up on one piece of paper understanding that we're going to give
for each paper that we have, three minutes and a minute to conclude. We want to be fair
to everybody so nobody's gonna get extra. When you reach four minutes, we're going to
be very polite in asking you to wrap it up with a final sentence, and if you try to keep
going, we're going to be polite and interrupt you. So, please, if you can, just to be fair for
everybody because I know there's a lot of people signed up, we want to make sure that
everybody has their chance to testify within a decent hour or a decent time. So we
appreciate your cooperation with that.
We're not here to answer questions. We're here to hear ... take your thoughts into
consideration as we start to deliberate the Mayor's Proposed Budget and we will be meet
... we're meeting basically every day down at the Council chambers and we are going
out to the different communities to hear your thoughts as well. We're not going to be
getting into any type of decision-making, just for your information, until towards the
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middle and end of April. So we're taking over a month to gather information, not only
from the public but also from the Department Heads and the divisions of those various
departments, so that we can render some thoughtful decisions on this proposed Budget.
So with that we want to make sure that first if you have a cell phone or a pager, we'd
appreciate it if you just put it to the silent mode, and again, we don't want to be rude. We
want to make sure that you get that turned off, and if you do have it on or you forget to
tum it off, we'll just stop and let you step outside to take your call if it's important.
Sometimes we have kids that we're waiting for so we understand that, but if we can do
our best to not interrupt the meeting this evening.
The final thing is if you can, please state your name for the record, and if you are
representing an organization, we'd like to know that as well. We are recording this so we
need you to step right up to the microphone and speak clearly into the microphone. And
you're speaking to us so we appreciate it if you didn't take off the mike, and tum around
and start talking to everybody else. So with that we'll go ahead and start introducing our
first testifiers. Give us a second, folks. " . (short pause) . ..
First person to testify is Brandon Nagata, followed by Colin Hanlon .
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MR. HANLON: Hello. Would you mind if we had the youth go first and then have Brandon
follow, if we go by as a group?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Go ahead. And again, if you can state your names for the record,
kids.
MS. BUIST: Hi. My name is Gabby, and I want to say thank you for supporting the Boys and
Girls Club of Maui ... of Upcountry Maui. You have done a great thing for the kids that
live here on Maui. I just moved here from Kauai and I feel really happy because of the
Boys and Girls Club. They made me feel like I've been here forever. But thank you for
donating money and your time to the Boys and Girls Club of Maui Upcountry, also for
the great staff that you have provided for us.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Gabrielle.
MS. VARGA: Hi. My name is Sara. I go to Kalama Intermediate School and I'm in eighth
grade. The Boys and Girls Club is a fun place for me to do a lot of things like I can do
my homework there and then I can go home and not have to worry about it. And also, I
can do a lot of games and sports and activities like that there that I can't at home, like
play pool and dodge ball and other sports like that. And I wanted to thank the County
Council for supporting the Boys and Girls Club of Maui.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Sara.
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MS. POPLARDO: Hi. My name is Puaena Poplardo. I'm in eighth grade and I go to Kalama
Intermediate School. The Boys and Girls Club is important to me because it keeps a lot
of the teens out from doing drugs and being pressured by other teens. It's also fun
because a lot of my friends go and we do sports that the club set up for us to keep active.
And I would just like to thank you guys for supporting Upcountry Maui Boys and Girls
Club.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And you are Puaena? Thank you, Pua.
MS. GALAMBOS: Hi. My name is Tobey Galambos and I go to Kalama Intermediate School.
I'm in seventh grade. I'm happy for Boys and Girls Club to be here because it's a
positive place for kids. It helps me to stay out of trouble and it helps me not to do drugs
or to drink. You can also make friends at Boys and Girls Club. There are good games
you can play at Boys and Girls Club, like football and dodge ball. There are also clubs
you can go to like Girls Club and Boys Club. In Girls Club, you talk about problems and
go on trips and bake foods. In Boys Club, they probably do the same except for cooking.
Thank you for your support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Tobey. Again, I remind you speak right into the microphone. You
can bend it down and speak right into it so everybody can hear you. Thank you.
MS. ALEXANDER: Hello. My name is Megan Alexander and I go to Kalama Intermediate
School. I am in sixth grade and I am 12 years old. I like the Boys and Girls Club
because we have a lot of activities and it keeps me busy after tutoring in school. I would
like to thank you for supporting the Boys and Girls Club of Maui. It means a lot to me
because the Boys and Girls Club of Maui is like a second family to me. Boys and Girls
Club has a lot of clubs, like Girls Club where we talk about problems with other kids and
issues. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. MUROMOTO:
My name is Aja and I have been a member of the Boys and Girls Club
for three years. I like the Boys and Girls Club of Maui because the staff helps us with
stuff and there are a lot of sports we could play like German dodge ball, football, and
basketball. The Club is cool because you get to play pool, ping pong, computer, and
bumper pool. Also, this is a safe place because they would help you if you need help and
they are also safe because they don't let you go on chat rooms.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Aja.
MR. MUROMOTO: Hi. My name is Chase Muramoto and I just turned 15 years old. I've been
a member of the Boys and Girls Club Upcountry for about five to six years, and in
various clubs like Boys Clubs, Smart Moves, Smart Leaders, and Dive Club. I've done
over a 100 hours community service around the club and in various cleaning up activities.
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If it wasn't for you, the County Council, three other boys and staff and I, would not be
able to go to the Big Island for spear fishing during the summer. Thank you very much
for your support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chase.
MR. NAGATA: Aloha. My name is Brandon Nagata and I'm the Unit Director for Upcountry.
First of all, I just wanted to say thank you for you guys support. With you guys
increasing the budget we've been able to surpass our numbers last year and I think right
now we're over our projected amount of membership for this year. We're able to service
over 1,000 kids yearly with the youth dances, provide my staff with training. So the
funding that you guys give us has just been very helpful in progressing as our club, our
staff, and the kids. So please continue to support us. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Nagata.
MR. HANLON: I'm just gonna lean over that. ... (referring to the microphone) . ..
CHAIR KANE: You can adjust the bottom.
MR. HANLON: Oh.
CHAIR KANE: There you go. Unscrew ... now just loosen. There you go.
MR. HANLON: Aloha. My name is Colin Hanlon. I'm the Executive Director with the Boys
and Girls Club. I want to take this opportunity to thank the Council for your vision last
year of increasing the budget for the youth centers ... all the youth centers. It was wellneeded, well-deserved, and put to good use. We did add staff and create a safer place for
our kids. And to be quite frank, every time we add staff the kids just keep on coming and
building and we serve more. So I'd like to thank you for that. Upcountry's...
Upcountry's Club is by far one of our more successful clubs, and as you can see with the
kids here, they do an awful lot of character and leadership development programs, and
this club right here is one of our leaders community service. Brandon's had his group
of Keystone and Torch Club, the leadership kids, down at the Kalama Skate Park painting
it and cleaning it and making sure it turns around as well as many other programs. I want
to thank the County as a great partner in prevention with the Boys and Girls Club and this
right now is a program for our kids and this teaches them a sense of influence, a sense of
power, to teach them the political process, and I thank you for that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hanlon. Mr. Becraft.
MR. BECRAFT: Hello. My name is Jamie Becraft and I'm a Board Member of the Boys and
Girls Club and I thank you for the opportunity to testify. I have testified before and I'm
gonna reiterate some of the things that I believe this organization is one of the best
organizations on the island and with that I ended up being a Board Member. It services
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the children in a way that I've never been with any other organization and I've seen a lot
of organizations through my career path. So I just want to thank: everybody for
supporting and acknowledge that they have done a lot with the youth. They work with
the Police Department. They help us out in a lot of areas and it's expanding. You know,
we're getting into Kahekili Terrace. They're servicing probably 450 to 500 kids a day on
a daily basis and that's just huge to get the children in the right area doing the right thing
for the right reasons. Thank: you for your time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank: you, Mr. Becraft. Members, are there any questions for Mr. Hanlon,
Mr. Nagata, or Mr. Becraft or any of the kids? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank: you. Question for Mr. Hanlon. I understand that
in Kahului the Boys and Girls Club do provide some after school tutoring to some of the
elementary and I guess Maui Waena Intermediate School. Do you do the same
Upcountry?
MR. HANLON: We have those programs but they are at the club. We don't ... we have had
collaborations with King K. here and with Kalama School but those were to run ... what
we did there was we got into the health classes and we taught our prevention program,
Smart Moves. At Maui Waena, that's the acculturation program and that's a two-day
program specifically for immigrant youth and the end goal to that is to make sure those
kids feel ownership of the central location. So we go where they're at. We run program
and during the off days we try to get those kids to feel more comfortable taking part in
the resources of the community. So a couple of years ago we ran the exact same program
in Lahaina through the Department of Immigration grant and we identified those kids
through the ESL Programs, same as we're doing over at Maui Waena. But at every club
we have learning centers and every club runs a program called Power Hour, which is the
tutored homework help.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank: you. So as far as ... I understand Maui Waena
you do provide that ESL, well, tutoring for those ESL kids. Any plans in regards to like
say Kahului School, as well as Lihikai School? I know we have Upcountry, but you
know, being the representative of Kahului, I hear so much about your after school
tutoring program that ifit ... could be expanded to those two schools also?
MR. HANLON: It can be. What we're trying to keep our eye on for that program specifically is
where the immigrant youth are and we're trying to focus on where the heaviest use would
be.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank: you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Anymore questions, Members? Hearing none. Panther Power - Mr. Molina is
present in the house from Kalama Intermediate. Thank: you very much. Appreciate your
testimony.
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MR. HANLON: And one last thing I forgot to say that most of our youth get to all of our
programs using the MEO bus so please keep that in mind. . .. (applause) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you very much. Next to testify is Betty Delima, and
Ms. Delima will be followed by Kaulana Ryan and Kiana Atkinson.
MS. DELIMA: Good evening, Council Chair, Council Members, ladies and gentlemen. My
name is Betty Delima. I'm here tonight to testify on behalf of MEO and for the Kula
Seniors. First of all, we'd like to say thank you for your support in the past years and on
behalf of MEO we would like to ask your support again for the transportation operations,
the Youth Bank, the MEO BDC and all the other programs that the MEO ... that MEO
handles. According to the Mayor's Budget, some of the requests of MEO has been cut
and that means that some of the programs will be affected if this happens.
Now on behalf of the Kula seniors, we would like to have the Kula Community Center
repaired. The Center is used by the seniors for the nutrition program every Tuesday and
Friday and by many other Upcountry clubs. It is in dire need of having the kitchen
cabinets changed and the pipes under the sink that are leaking changed. It is very
unsanitary and smelly. The floor tiles are being uprooted little by little and the entire
floor needs a change. The electrical system is also something that goes haywire when
parties are held and different speaker systems are used. You cannot plug in a coffee pot
and a microwave at the same time. It throws the electrical system off. The Center needs
a painting. It looks ... to me it looks dirty and unkempt. And since the Mayor's Budget
has a $1.3 million for the Kula Tennis Courts and the people who use the tennis courts
need the community center bathrooms. It is very important to have this facility taken
care of. We have spoken to the Mayor; we have spoken to the Parks Director, Glenn
Correa; we have spoken to Mr. Pontanilla; we have spoken to Mr. Mike Molina; and so
we ask you, the Council, for your support. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Delima. Members, any questions? Ms. Delima, we have
questions for you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Betty. Thank you for your testimony. I
believe it was several months ago I came up to visit with you and you did make me aware
of the concerns, and just for your information, I did submit those concerns to the Parks
Department. So to your ... nothing has been done?
MS. DELIMA: A couple of weeks ago my seniors told me, oh, somebody from the Parks came
up to work in the kitchen. I said, oh, wonderful. So I went into the kitchen and I looked
around and I didn't see anything that was done. So then I went to the sink and the
boarding behind the pipes on the outside, now I'm not talking in the cabinets, the outside
was ... it was raised. So what the Parks, whoever came from the Parks, glued it down
and they did caulking and that was it. Nothing else.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Has the clock been replaced as well?
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MS. DELIMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I know there's a problem with the clock.
MS. DELIMA: The clock ... the clock is still hanging with the ... somebody climbed up on a
ladder and kind of put the two handles so that you could see the time. I mean, you know,
it's a shame. I went to the Makawao Community Center and it's beautiful. It's all
repainted. It's clean. It's really beautiful and we need that up in Kula.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Betty.
MS. DELIMA: You're welcome. " . (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Betty, for being here tonight. As I explained
earlier, I met with the group back during the summer and at that time, you know, a lot of
your concerns ... in fact all of the seniors that were there provided me and one of my
staff people your concerns and we had forwarded your concerns to the Parks Department.
You know, we do have the Deputy over here. Hopefully, he's taking down all of the
information that is being provided tonight. Again, you know, we've ... myself and
Mr. Molina have written to the Parks Department in regards to your concerns.
MS. DELIMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any other questions, Members, from Ms. Delima? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony.
MS. DELIMA: May I ... may I acknowledge my seniors that accompanied me tonight?
CHAIR KANE: Absolutely!
MS. DELIMA: Would the seniors please stand? .. . (applause). ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for being here. Thank you. Thank you.
MS. DELIMA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Delima, appreciate your testimony. Next to testify Kaulana Ryan and
Kiana Atkinson, and they'll be followed by Jim Crowe with two youths with Jim.
MS. RYAN: Aloha mai kakou. My name is Kaulana Ryan and I'm currently a freshman at King
Kekaulike High School.
MS. ATKINSON: Aloha. My name is Kiana Atkinson and I'm also a freshman at King
Kekaulike High School.
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MS. RYAN: We are here tonight on behalf of Focus Maui Nui which is a program which
empowers the residents of Maui Nui to take action to build a future that we all want.
MS. ATKINSON: We are part of the newly-formed Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance which is a
group of20 high school students from all across Maui County.
MS. RYAN: Although we have only met twice we have fun getting to know each other and plan
projects that we can work on together in the future.
MS. ATKINSON: Like last Saturday we had a meeting at HC&S and we learned about the
operation, conservation practices, and how they solve 12 percent of Maui County's
electricity.
MS. RYAN: Mahalo for your continued support.
MS. RYAN AND MS. ATKINSON: Focus Maui Nui

own it!

CHAIR KANE: Right on! Thank you, Ms. Ryan, Ms. Atkinson. Members, any questions for
our youth? Hearing none. Thank you very much, ladies.... (applause). .. Mr. Crowe
and you have two young ones with you.
MR. CROWE: I do not have two young ones with me but I have two good reasons why they're
not here. You know, at Youth Bank we teach them to ... how to work and then we help
them get jobs if they're ready and Arianna was one of 'em and I'm pretty sure she's
working and there's a very good side to that. The other is we had class today and at the
end of the class, Lieutenant Governor Duke Aiona came to talk to the kids and I know
they had a lot of questions and answers, and the kids are probably just getting home so
they're not here. So I'm ... on their behalf thank you for your support and please
continue.
CHAIR KANE: If you can state your name for the record and the organization that you
represent, Mr. Crowe.
MR. CROWE: Yeah. My name is

Crowe.

the Program Director of MEO Youth Bank.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Crowe. Members, any questions for Mr. Crowe? Hearing
none. Jim, thank you. Next to testify is Patte Goff and Caroline Jacinto, and following
them will be ... and I'm sorry, Jud Cunningham. And again folks, please state your
name for the record before you start your testimony. Thank you.
MS. GOFF: Hi. I'm Patte Goff and I'm here to support MEO Head Start Program. Dear
Council Members, I'm a DOE Special Ed teacher at the Head Start Makawao B Site. The
Head Start Program is a wonderful program for our children. I've seen tremendous gains
in both the special ed students and the regular ed students in all aspects of their
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development. With the No Child Left Behind Act more is ... now in effect more is
expected of our kindergarteners. The Head Start Program provides a preschool
experience for children who had not otherwise be able to attend preschool due to
financial issues. This preschool experience provides the children with the skills
necessary to be successful in their public school life. By continuing to fund the Head
Start Program you are truly giving a gift to our community. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. JACINTO: Hi.
CHAIR KANE: We'll get some assistance for you. Hang on one second.
MS. JACINTO: Oh, okay.... (microphone being adjusted) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead and testify, ma'am.
MS. JACINTO: Okay. My name is Caroline Jacinto. I am from Makawao B Head Start. I'm
the head teacher. I have several letters from my parents but I'm just gonna read off two
and I'm gonna submit them after I'm done.
This one's from Gaylene Baker: "I would like to express my gratitude to the County
Council for making it possible again for so many children to attend the MEO Head Start
Programs. Mahalo! As for my family, we have a large group with five children in our
household. There are two absent parents who contribute nothing financially. It is only
by the generosity of this County and programs such as MEO Head Start that we can have
something more to offer our son, Stephen. And when I say "more", it's a whole lot more!
Head Start is a great program! The teachers are very organized, thoughtful, caring, and
provide an excellent start for Stephen. Meeting the parents has been a great avenue to
make new friends in the community, and our son has grown leaps and bounds, making
new friends and learning new concepts. We hope that we can continue to bring him from
Paia to Makawao without bus service."
And there's another one from Grace Parry: "I am a mother of a Head Start preschooler
and I would like to take the time to thank you for funding you provide for this wonderful
program. My child has benefited so much from Head Start. The growth I have seen in
the social conversational skills is amazing. When my child started school at the
beginning of the year, his speech was 60 percent unintelligible as he was afraid of people.
Today, just six months later, he is able to use to ten word intelligible sentences and
interact with other children and adults voluntarily. In addition, the extended hours that
Head Start provides for the children to nap is a godsend. Again, thank you for additional
funding you provide for the Head Start Program."
And this is one other parent, Felicia Abacara. That's one of my parents. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Jacinto. Ms. Goff, thank you very much. Thank you. Any
questions, Members? Hearing none. Thank you. Next to testify is Jud Cunningham and
he'll be followed by Stephen Kealoha.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Okay. I can back up a little bit here. ... (referring to microphone
stand) . .. Chairman Kane, Members of the Budget Committee, good evening. My name
is Jud Cunningham and I'm Chief Executive Officer of Aloha House speaking on behalf
of them. I provided you a copy of my testimony, but I'd like to share with you for the
record here, we did drop off at each of your offices today a letter describing our need and
a request for financial support which I'm going to summarize here. Also included with
the letter is a DVD which includes a virtual tour of the facilities that I'm gonna talk about
tonight so I encourage you to take a look at that. We checked if the software would work
and everything and I think it will.
We're requesting funding for demolition and new construction of a couple of the
dormitories that are at Maunaolu Campus. Make a few points - drug and alcohol abuse,
especially ice or crystal methamphetamine has been continuously identified as one of the
most serious issues affecting the citizens and families ofMaui County, and therefore, is a
high priority we believe for use of public funds. We're requesting I think a modest
$188,500 out of the '07 Budget which is needed to complete the replacement of two
dilapidated buildings located on the County property on the old Maunaolu College
Campus at Ike Drive and leased to Aloha House for use as a residential treatment facility
for alcohol and drug rehabilitation. In '02 and '03, CDBG funds were awarded totaling
$295,000 to complete the demolition and construction of the two buildings. We had also
raised an additional 45,000 in private grants to support the project.
Over the past two years, the architectural planning and environmental assessment work
was done in preparation for construction. Building plans have already been submitted for
permit, the required environmental assessment has been completed and approved with the
finding of no significant impact, and we've received a notice to proceed for completion
of one of the buildings because that's all the money we have right now for. The total
estimated cost of the two buildings is about ... we're estimating at $710,000. We've
been in contact with the Weinberg Foundation. I've been encouraged to apply for ...
let's see where did I lose my place here ... to apply for their support. The project would
appear to fall within their guidelines and priorities. We're encouraged to make an
application. However, they can only participate in 30 percent of the total cost of the
project that leaves a funding gap of 188,500.
So we're looking to the County with our request that funds be earmarked in the '07
Budget to complete the project in the immediate future for many reasons. One of which
is that substance abuse treatment is a great need in our community. We're literally
bursting at the seams in terms of persons needing and requesting treatment. This new
construction will not even replace dilapidated dormitories with serious health and safety
concerns. As Ms. Delima was talking, I thought she was describing our facilities instead
of the Kula Center. It sounded very similar in terms of ... but we'll also increase our
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capacity from 32 to 42 beds so an additional ten beds. So thank you so much. You've
helped us so much over the years. We're coming back - we need your continued
partnership and help. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Cunningham. Members, any questions for Mr. Cunningham?
Hearing none. Thank you very much. Mr. Kealoha. He'll be followed by, and I'm sorry
if I'm mispronouncing your name, J ani Sheppard.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Jani (pronounced "Janey").
CHAIR KANE: Jani. Thank you. Jani Sheppard.
MR. KEALOHA: Good evening, Chairman Kane and Members of the Finance Budget
Committee. My name is Stephen Kealoha and I'm the President of the Aloha House
Board of Directors, and I'm here tonight to speak on behalf of our Board because we are
tremendously grateful for the support you have provided to us in the past. As described
by Mr. Cunningham earlier, your financial support is again needed to help us complete
the construction of the dormitories that are needed so that we can continue to provide
adequate substance abuse treatment services. Today I hope to give you some valuable
insight about the issue surrounding substance abuse and the services that Aloha House
provides in addressing this devastating and insidious problem that infiltrates every
segment of our community. Recently, it was reported in 2005 and I quote: "Ice is
claiming lives in Honolulu with such regularity that the deadly drug could be responsible
for 80 fatalities by the end of the year easily surpassing the current benchmark of 62
deaths. The medical examiner also believes that there are many other crystal
methamphetamine related deaths in the community that have been previously listed as
strokes, heart attacks, and bronchial asthma. Use of the drug has been linked to
enlargement of the heart and high blood pressure the kinds of things that can cause all
three medical problems."
my view, what is most devastating to our society and our community is the long-term
intergenerational affliction. How sad it is that we have . . . what it has come to is
illustrated by the court case in which a mother was tried for the death of her baby because
she abused during her pregnancy and right before death ... right before birth, I'm sorry.
. . .(change tape) . .. Unfortunately, those that are chemically dependent are often labeled
and judged by the general pUblic. Often they are seen in such a negative way by society
that they begin to think of themselves in the same way. Stigma can cause individuals to
feel they need to become secretive and ashamed. Many in society view addicts as lacking
willpower rather than having a chronic but treatable disease. And let me repeat that
substance abuse is a chronic and treatable disease.
While not all of the following services are dependent upon the availability of the
dormitory facilities we've described they do give you a perspective of the breadth of
services that we provide at Aloha House. We provide treatment services for alcohol and
drug addiction and it's expanded to include additional mental health and social services.
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It's important to note that many need to be treated for both their drug or alcohol problems
as well as mental dysfunctions at the same time. We provide a full range of services that
includes a detox program and residential treatment. Typically two to six weeks
depending upon the need. In preparation for discharge, all facets of the individual's life
are reviewed as each relates to recovery family strengthening, job skills, academic and
training requirements,-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. KEALOHA: --housing, 12-step philosophies, best practices including the use of the
cognitive behavioral treatment model, medical needs, emotional and behavioral needs,
host culture sensitivity, and other areas are provided. We provide an intensive out-patient
program and maintenance through the after care and transitional housing program. We
provide mental health services through 20-plus independent contractors including
psychiatrists, psychologist, social workers, and other mental health professionals. We
provide services through the Maui Drug Court and Family Court Drug Court and MEO's
BEST Program, a reintegration program for inmates being released back into the
community. We provide school-based prevention, education, and treatment programs at
high schools and various elementary schools. This includes our Maui Hero Project for
the youth. Let me close by saying that the problem of substance abuse and of major
concern - the ice problem-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. KEALOHA: --is really affecting the health, welfare, and safety of Maui community and
continues to escalate. Past community needs assessments have identified substance abuse
as the number one social ill facing us here in Maui County.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Kealoha, if you can conclude your remarks, please.
MR. KEALOHA: Okay. I'm ending right now. I want to thank you again for all your support
and please help us provide Aloha House make a difference to our community
the
future. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kealoha. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming tonight. Can you give us kind of a
percentage of the people you serve what percent have alcohol problems as opposed to
drug problems?
MR. KEALOHA: I personally am not able to provide you with that information. I'm not, you
know, that close to all of the programs. I'm a member ofthe Board.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
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MR. KEALOHA: I think that would have been probably better for Mr. Cunningham to deal
with. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll find out later. Thank you.
MR. KEALOHA: Yeah. We can provide that infonnation if you need that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Mr. Kealoha? Seeing none.
Mr. Kealoha, thank you very much for your testimony. J ani Sheppard. Ms. Sheppard
will be followed by Daisy Butay. And again, forgive me if I'm mispronouncing names. I
know you'll correct me when you come up to the mike.
MS. SHEPPARD: Hello, Committee Members. My name is Jani Sheppard and I represent the
families served by Maui Family Support Services. As many of you know in 2000, I'm
sorry, as many of you know in 2005 Maui Family Support Services celebrated its 25 th
anniversary of serving the Maui community. One of the programs that we have is the
Early Head Start Program for families on Maui. The Early Head Start Program provides
services to families with infants and toddlers from pre-natal through age three in our
Early Childhood Development Center and also provides home visiting services for
families. Families receive free quality childcare 12 months a year for income-eligible
families who are working or attending schooL They get child ... comprehensive child
development services, nutrition specialist, mental health, and physical health specialist,
child development specialist. They have weekly family socialization. There's a monthly
parent and education and support group and weekly home visits. It's for the families who
prefer the home visiting component of the program.
Families must meet very strict eligibility income guidelines established by the Federal
government to be in the program. And for example, the 2005 eligibility rules limits the
annual income to 18,500 for a family of three. The program serves children and families
most in need who are living in our community and living far below the poverty level.
These families are starting out. They're trying to get back on their feet. They're trying to
get to school and have jobs and strengthen their families and support their families. Since
1999, the Early Head Start Program has served 405 infants and toddlers. We have a
really solid . . . Maui Family Support Services has a very solid commitment to this
program and we recognize the importance that it has for families especially given some
of those with the most severe financial stress.
We have a long waiting list right now. We have just today about 45 families who are
waiting for services in the program. The commitment does, however, come with a really
high price tag. We are currently in this year alone providing 27 percent which is about
$222,000 of the funding needed to run the program. The Early Head Start Program, as
well as our Policy Council, the Policy Council is made up of family members and
community members, people receiving the service, and other providers in the community,
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and they provide advice and support for the program and let us know if we're doing
what's really needed. The Policy Council we worked with to advocate with, ACF, to
provide additional funding. The bottom line is that they said that they don't have the
resources at this time. We're requesting the allocation in the County Budget for $50,000
but that that $50,000 is going to leverage approximately $628,000 in Federal funds. And
we think that that's really important that ... the leveraging of the funding. We very
much appreciate your support as you review the needs of our residents for our County,
and according to our research, we know that, well, in current research that one dollar
spent in prevention-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. SHEPPARD: --and early childhood development save seven later in life. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:
Ms. Sheppard, hang on one second.
Members, any questions for
Ms. Sheppard? I have a question. Do you know if your request is already included in the
'07 Budget or is this ...
MS. SHEPPARD: Yes. It is included.
CHAIR KANE: It's already included.
MS. SHEPPARD: It's included - yes. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions, Members, for Ms. Sheppard? She
has provided written testimony-MS. SHEPPARD: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --so thank you for that.
MS. SHEPPARD: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Daisy Butay.
MS. BUTAY: Good evening. My name is Daisy Butay. It is with great pleasure to stand before
you tonight to ask for your support on the proposed Budget submitted by Maui Family
Support Services Early Head Start Program. As a single and working parent of an eightmonth old I strongly believe that a licensed childcare facility like Maui Family Support
Services is a great asset to have in the Maui community. Maui Family Support Services
provide a comprehensive high service quality that will benefit greatly young children in
terms of health, social, emotional, physical, and cognitive development. And also it
benefits working parents like myself who become more stable and productive employees
knowing that our children is in a high-quality and safe environment. I encourage you
please support the needs of Maui Family Support Services. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Butay. Members, any questions for Ms. Butay. Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony, ladies. Next to testify we have combined Ms. HainesSwatek, Ms. Zeitler, Ms. Watanabe, and Ms. James for King Kekaulike EAST Labs.
Following them would be Martha Burton.
MS. HAINES-SWATEK: Good evening. My name is Emily Haines-Swatek and I'm the
facilitator of the King Kekaulike High School Environmental and Spatial Technology
Lab, otherwise known as the EAST Project. This program is an elective course which
uses advance technology to solve community-based problems. Students are involved
with all types of projects from educating elementary students about the dangers of
smoking to inventorying different ant species on the island and then using geographic
information systems to plot them out and do interactive maps. This program allows
students to become self-directed learners, effective communicators, collaborators, and
ethical users of technology. It's a program that's open to all types of students. It must be
representative of our school population. This program will not be possible without the
support of Maui Economic Development Board and the Women in Technology Project.
They were extremely instrumental in making our trip to the National Conference in
Arkansas last month possible. We were ... while we were there we were able to bring
home an award of excellence. Without their support it would not have happened. They
helped with travel arrangements, funding, just getting us there, getting the students there.
They've also been able to provide students training in different technology systems from
GIS Systems, Auto Desk, website design. So they've been ... they make us happen.
They allow the program to exist. My students and possibly a parent, if time allows, will
share how this program has impacted them.
MS. JAMES: My name is Sonya James and I'm from the King Kekaulike EAST Lab. Due to
the financial support provided to our EAST Lab I was able to attend this year's 2006
National EAST Partnership Conference in Hot Springs, Arkansas. There our EAST Lab
received the Founder's Award of Excellence which I was strongly a part of. This award
recognized our community involvement, collaboration, integration of technology, and
student growth. EAST has done a lot of great things for me. For example, I've learned
technology skills such as web design that would aid me in obtaining work later in my life.
Thank you for providing the financial support that has allowed me to gain all the
experiences and knowledge I've obtained from being a part of the King Kekaulike High
School EAST Lab. I also hope you will continue to provide support to allow future
students to gain the experiences I have. Thank you.
MS. ZEITLER: Hello. My name is Rose Zeitler and this was my second year attending the
National EAST Conference for Kekaulike High School EAST Lab. I had a lot of fun on
these trips but I also learned a lot of really good project ideas from other EAST Labs at
the conference. Like last year I learned at the conference . . . I was introduced to the
design program called SketchUp and I've been using it to create an accurate 3D map of
the school. But preparing for the conference these past years and especially this year
when I took on more responsibilities myself, I feel that EAST has helped me prepare for
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life in and out of high school. And by simply taking EAST these past two years I've
learned over ten different programs that I've never even heard of before but now I know
them well enough to teach them to other people in my class and I feel that this is the most
valuable class I have ever taken and I'll use these skills later far in the future. So thank
you very much for sponsoring our trip and I hope that you sponsor it next year for future
EAST students. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Rose.
MS. WATANABE: Hello. My name is Danielle Watanabe and I'm a senior at King Kekaulike.
I've been in EAST for four years. In this four years I've been able to do projects for the
community and I've learned programs and skills that I could only gain from our EAST
Program that I know will be beneficial for years to come. Thank you so much for your
support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Jump in. You got some time. You can adjust the microphone.
Introduce yourself
MR. HAYASHI: Okay. Hello. My name is Wesley Hayashi. A few weeks ago I was fortunate
enough to participate in the National EAST Conference. I feel at this conference I was
able to learn the true potential that lies with EAST. For example, I have seen EAST
teams that have used their resources to raise a memorial for the Japanese held at the
internment camps in Arkansas. I've seen EAST teams use GPS and GIS to map out the
pollution in their rivers. I've even seen EAST teams develop drinking and driving videos
- against it, of course. I was also able to participate last year in the Maui Tech Careers
Day. It allowed me to see what kind of opportunities lie for me here on Maui in a
technology resource field like with satellite companies like Boeing. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. HAYASHI: Honorable Council Members, my name is Agnes Hayashi and I'm here before
you tonight as a parent. I do know most of you but I'm here as a parent and Ijust wanted
to clarify that. And I'm here to testify
support of the Environmental and Spatial
Technology Program - the EAST Program that these students and Mrs. Emily HainesSwatek had talked about. And the reason why I'm here is because that's my son you just
heard and he's been in the EAST Program for three years now with King Kekaulike and
the ... I'm just really impressed with the program, what's it ... what it's done for him
and how it can impact these students, our students, our youth, that are attending public
school and having this kind of opportunities. So I feel very passionate about this program
because it hits ... it hits close to home and so I ask for your continued support. I think
it's a great program. It has so much to offer to our students especially and the fact that
technology is the future and the students can start now. And they're doing projects that
are benefiting our community. They're service oriented. I think ... I believe it's part of
the ... part of the curriculum of the class. My son is working on the ... on GPS with
MPD and so the benefits are far reaching. It helps our whole community and it impacts
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positively our students - our future leaders that all of you, you know, all of you speak
to support. So I humbly am here before you as a parent to ask for your continued support
of this program in our schools. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Hayashi. Members, any questions for any of the . . . the
teacher, the students, or Ms. Hayashi? You can go ahead and ask. Go ahead.
Ms. Swatek.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you know if the funding for MEDB for this program is
in the Budget right now?
MS. HAINES-SWATEK: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any other questions, Members? Hearing none. Thank you very
much. Appreciate it. Thank you. Next to testify is Martha Burton and Ms. Burton will
be followed by Ms. Rita Silva.
MS. BURTON: Aloha, and thank you so much for funding all these programs and I certainly
wish that there was enough to go around for everyone so that it was just a matter of
handing it out. I've heard of all the good that MEO has done in the years that I've lived
here which is about 22 years now. And I had a personal need that you folks helped me
with on a dental emergency that through the Teresa Hughes Foundation helped supply me
with funding to have a crown done that was like $1,500 that I didn't have. I certainly
appreciate that and can tell you right now I don't know what I would have done if you
hadn't helped me. It was a very painful quick thing. I feel almost a little stupid because
these other programs are so much needed and so I can only say thank you for having this
program for a person like myself and all these other programs. Thank you so much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can state your name for the record, rna' am.
MS. BURTON: Martha Burton.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Burton. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony. Ms. Rita Silva and Ms. Silva will be followed by Dana Jones.
MS. SILVA: My name is Rita Silva. There are two subjects I want to testify on this evening.
One is Olinda Road condition and transportation. There's no drainage on Olinda Road.
In winter, residents and visitors have a flooded road to drive on and this is very
dangerous. One idea if there are no other options open, is to ask property owners to let
the County run a ditch-like surface from the roadside into the residents property by
installing a wire mesh along the fence line to keep out rubbish. I'm very grateful for the
transportation that is now available but it is very inadequate. MEO transportation drivers
know how to get to every and any address. They know when the banks open and the
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stores also. The drivers know how to treat passengers and good public relations and
interpersonal relations. They work very hard and long hours. The drivers haven't had a
raise in years. MEO is very short of drivers. MEO is asking for a small raise for drivers
in this County Budget. This is not okay. In view of the fact that the cost of living goes
up and the drivers haven't had a raise in years, it is long overdue that a sizeable increase
in salaries for MEO drivers be included in this Budget.
Resignations have taken place. Passengers struggle because MEO cannot meet its
commitments due to shortages of passenger assistance technicians. This is a critical
situation. I'm feeling it. The PATs are very good to me but management controls what
the PATs can and cannot do. I was on the way to Kula Hardware to purchase an item not
available in Pukalani one Saturday. The driver was waiting for the traffic light to change
at the intersection of King K. High School when the office phoned him to take me home.
The next day, Sunday, however, after mass at St. Joseph's, MEO did take me to Kula
Hardway ... Hardware. It cost MEO more money to do this. It is true that the PATs do
a wonderful job even with the driver shortage. I'm asking that the Ala Hou
Transportation Program be expanded. Myself and others would like to go to the Castle
Theatre for concerts and dinner. Presently, we can't. There are no transportation and
more passengers need to be included in the transportation planning.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. SILVA: More pUblicity needs to be done. Ala Hou Transportation was expanded effective
July 1, 2005. I did not find out until October 2005. Just to cite one example I paid $80
roundtrip by taxi to go to the doctor. This should never have happened. MEO and
County transportation need to take responsibility in this and make sure that the public is
well-informed. Transportation schedules need to be clearer to senior citizens.
And now let me tell you a little about the PATs. Kimo he owns seven dogs. He's just
buying a house and he's very good with people. He volunteers with the Special
Olympics. He's taking in some Special Olympians into his new home because he cares.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. SILVA: Do I have another minute?
CHAIR KANE: No, but you can conclude your comments, if you will, please.
MS. SILVA: Okay. Carolyn Freitas, the Up country shuttle driver, she knows everywhere to go
and she, she keeps control of her bus and makes sure that everyone is alright. If she can't
find somebody, she keeps looking until she does. Keoki he takes me the safe way
home. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Silva. Members, any questions for Ms. Silva? Hearing none.
Thank you very much for your testimony. Dana Jones. Mr. Jones will be followed by
Kandace Mackenzie.
MR. JONES: Thank you. I testified before your Budget Committee last year at Paia. I live up
in Olinda at the top of Olinda. The road that I and many people use, as Mike is aware,
Piiholo Road, the last time it was paved was 1989. Hannibal Tavares was the Mayor.
That road gets heavy traffic. It's had a lot of construction up there. A lot of new houses.
Cement trucks. The pavements busted up. It looks like somebody took a giant ball peen
hammer and worked over the road. In 1989, when Grace Pacific paved that road, it
looked beautiful. But unfortunately, 17 years later that's just too long to go without ...
without some paving work and it's become a safety hazard. There are places you just
have to drive it and see it for yourself. I would recommend that Council Members
actually take the time to just take a drive up and a drive down and I'd recommend you
use a four wheel drive vehicle when you do it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Jones. Hang on one second. Are there any questions for
Mr. Jones? Hearing none. Thank you for your testimony. Next to testify is Kandace
Mackenzie and she'll be followed by Lori Bisera.
MS. MACKENZIE: Hi, Members. Good evening. My name is Kandace Mackenzie.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Mackenzie, I'm sorry. If you can step forward closer to the mike, so we
can hear you.
MS. MACKENZIE: Good evening. My name is Kandace Mackenzie and I'm here tonight to
show support for the Head Start Program and to tell you our experience with Head Start.
My son, Zack, started the program in 2003 at Lihikai in Kahului. The Head Start staff
and teachers were extremely friendly and helpful at my son's first day of school. He
absolutely loved it.
The following year, my son went to Haiku Head Start. Again, the teachers made him feel
welcome and loved and Zack enjoyed going to school. He made a lot of friends. Head
Start also provided a summer program in which my son attended.
This year he attends Makawao A Head Start which has been the very ... has been the
most important in his early education. Due to an accident when he was an infant, Zack
suffered a traumatic brain injury. His needs are more intense. The teachers have worked
with him lovingly in a safe and enjoyable environment. Head Start not only helped my
son with his special needs, but has helped me as a parent.
Education is very important to our children and because of the Head Start Program my
son's first years of school have been wonderful. The program has offered excursions,
family fun days, and a father's day involvement. All the extra activities have made the
program a wonderful experience for not just the kids but the whole family.
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The Head Start Program has been such a value ... valuable part of my son's early
education. It has given us special opportunities for a great start. A start that is important
in the many years of education ahead, not only for my son but every child.
My son is moving on to kindergarten next year and we would like to thank everyone for
the opportunity to be part of this program and be members. Every child now and in the
future needs this program. Aloha and thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Mackenzie. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony. Lori Bisera. Ms. Bisera will be followed by Janelle Baoy and
Corey DeCoite.
MS. DELACRUZ: I signed up for Lori Bisera, as a parent, but she ... we supposed to speak but
she's not here so I'm going to speak as a parent for Head Start.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead and just state your name for the record. Thank you.
MS. DELACRUZ: Okay. My name is Joe1yn DelaCruz and I'm a parent of nine children. I
adopted four ... four boys and all with drug exposure. Without this program ... without
the Head Start Program there will be no possible way for me to send all of them to
preschool. I just thank you for your support in this program and I'm asking for you to
continue your support with the Head Start Program. I still have two remaining in Head
Start this year. So I just ask that you continue the support for much of it ... for this
program. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. DelaCruz. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you very much. Janelle Baoy and Corey DeCoite.
MS. BAOY: He's not here.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Go ahead.
MS. BAOY: Good evening, Maui County Council Members. My name is Janelle Baoy. I'm a
past parent currently working for MEO Head Start in Makawao. The Head Start Program
has helped me and my family by providing a safe and learning environment for my
children as well as my granddaughter, Leiana. And I want to keep this program alive
because I know these children have the potential to lead us into the new future. I would
like to ask the County to keep funding all MEO programs such as Head Start, Head Start
Summer Program, and Transportation. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Baoy. Members, any questions for Ms. Baoy? Hearing none.
We have a little-MS. BAOY: My granddaughter-- 22 -
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CHAIR KANE: --comment here from our granddaughter.
MS. BAOY: --attends Makawao Head Start.
LEIANA: MEO need money.... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: MEO need money. Okay. We got it.
LEIANA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: You're welcome. Priceless, yeah, folks? Next to testify is Jessica Patterson.
Jessica, are you here?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right here.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Jessica. Go ahead and screw that thing on the bottom. Right there
right ... no, no, no, no, right in the middle, right above your ... there. . . .(referring to
microphone stand) . .. The one that your right hand is on. That's okay. We'll have Staff
take care ofthat. Perfect. You got it. Following Jessica is Leonard Hasse.
MS. PATTERSON: Hello. My name is Jessica Patterson and I'm 11 years old and I'm here to
testify for Maui Academy of Performing Arts. I have danced there for seven years and
going on eight and I think it's time for a change. As Maui grows, MAPA will grow and
we need room for future storage. It is very important to MAP A to help kids learn and
teach all kids that are willing. MAP A has been holding fundraisers such as the Garden
Party to help raise money for certain renovations. One renovation is to start ... is to get
bigger studios. The studios will help gain more teachers and new students. Another one
is to fix the roofs and air-conditioning. Just last Tuesday the air-conditioning in MAP A
stopped and my fellow dancers and I had to stop because ... to cool down. Just
yesterday it started to rain and there are at least seven leaks in the roof in the back area. I
think it's very important for MAPA to be a sanitary place for healthy dancers to go. I
think it's very important that we can have ... so that we can get money to make these
renovations and I think it's very important for the dancers to keep going with their
dreams. Thank you for listening to me and I hope that you would take these ideas into
consideration. " .(applause) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Patterson. Members, questions? Quite articulate. Thank you.
Leonard Hasse - Mr. Hasse, followed by Justin Rupert.
MR. HASSE: First, I want to thank Jessica for lowering the mike for me .... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: You can bring it up a little, Mr. Hasse. Thank you.
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MR. HASSE: My name is Leonard Hasse. I live on Piiholo Road. I have owned property since
1972 and 1986. I'm here to testify as a landowner and also as a President of the Olinda
Community Association. On behalf of myself and the Community Association I want to
thank the Council for hearing our problems and for doing ... (change tape) . .. something
about it. I've testified before the Committee three times. In 2002, about the Water Meter
Program, last year, and then I'm back again this year. I'm here to ask the Council for
assistance in finishing the funding - the necessary repairs that need to be done in addition
to those that you funded before. You gave us $400,000 last year. However, that will
only cover about 112 miles of the road. It still leaves many hazards up there. At the top
we have pine tree roots that have created a washboard effect. You can't drive over the
top between Olinda and Piiholo without shaking your car something severely. We have
trees and tree roots that have protruded into the road, have caused bumps, and are
actually hazardous if you try to pass another vehicle on the road. There are many of these
trees that have bruises on them.
Even though you all have identified money and have tried to address our problems we
have seen very little physical work being done on this. Even though we have assisted the
Highway Department in identifying the most hazardous conditions, we have yet to see
work done to correct these. No trees have been cut, no roots have been dug up, and
there's a lot of hazards that have not been addressed. The people on Alaluana do not
have their basic services because the road is a government road and has limited funding.
It's supposed to be addressed as part of this $400,000 which stretches the money even
more. We've requested signs ... speed limit signs on Piiholo and all we've gotten so far
is promises. We have no signs. There's only one sign on Piiholo and that's at the
bottom. So again, we're back here to seek your assistance in just doing the emergency
repairs to the road, not the total upgrade.
Second item that I wanted to address is the substandard waterline between Mile Marker 3
and 4 on Piiholo Road. The waterline is a l12-inch diameter substandard line identified
for repair. This is a waterline I testified about in 2002. That section of road has no fire
pipe stands.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. HASSE: The residences on the ... adjacent to the gulch are the middle of Eucalyptus
trees and should we have a fire, the Fire Department would be limited to the water that
they can transport to the site. Last October, they had a fire further up along Alaluana and
thank goodness they were able to contain it before it got out of hand. Once a fire starts in
the gulch it would be hard to get it put out. So again, I seek your assistance in ... for
additional funding to care . . . take care of these hazards that have not been addressed.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hasse.
Mr. Molina.

Hang on one second.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chainnan. Good evening, Leonard, and thank you
for sharing your concerns with us. As you know, we've appropriated the 400,000 last
July and as you stated you have not seen any physical work done there. I remember one
of your meetings, I believe it was sometime in August or September, the Administration
was there as well as the Public Works Department. From that time on you have not seen
any physical work? There's no additional signs that you had requested as well?
MR. HASSE: They have done ... they've been working on the design for that mile and a half
stretch. They said they had to have a survey ... surveys perfonned for the rest of the
road. They put a contract out. It's been awarded. I saw one surveyor about a month ago
but they haven't been back. I've made at least three calls asking for speed limit signs.
That began last August and I keep getting told, well, in two weeks, in two weeks, well,
it's been a little bit more than two weeks. And the Police can't ticket speeders if they
don't have the regulatory signs to enforce the law even though everybody knows you're
supposed to drive 25 miles an hour in a ... in a residential area. But try driving 25 miles
an hour on Piiholo. It's ... it's ... I would ask like Dana Jones if you want a thrill, start
at Makawao or start at St. Joseph's Church, drive up Piiholo, and back down the other
side. It's a big loop and it'll be a real eye opener.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and one more question. On the waterline, you made
request to the ... have you been in contact with the Water Department yourself and have
you had any written correspondences with the Water Department?
MR. HASSE: We did a survey. I did a survey of the 37 property owners along that stretch. We
briefed Mr. Tengan about the problem. They indicated that it originally was supposed to
be designed in 2005 with construction in 2007. Then it slipped. Design in 2007,
construction 2008. Now, it's design in 2008, maybe construction 2010. And there's only
one mile of the water distribution line that's substandard along that stretch and we're at
the bottom of it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. We'll go ahead and follow-up on those concerns for
you. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Mr. Hasse? Seeing none.
MR. HASSE: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, sir. Appreciate your testimony. Next to testify is Justin
Rupert, to be followed by Karolyn Mossman.
MR. RUPERT: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Justin Rupert and I'm here in
support ofMEO Business Development Corporation. Basically, I had attended their Core
Four class last year and I've found MEO and especially Core Four classes, Susie
Thieman, to be generally a really big, grateful, helpful resource in starting my own
business. A year ago I had a dream to start a company. I was working for a excavation
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company at the time and today because of the direct result of the MEO classes, I own my
own business and I provide a service to the community. So thank you for your support of
MEO Business Development and your continual support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Rupert. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
agam.
MR. RUPERT: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Appreciate it. Karolyn Mossman will be followed by Sally Sefton Johnston,
Anneka Johnston, and Steve Hatcher. Ms. Mossman, thank you.
MS. MOSSMAN: Hello. Good evening. Welcome to Upcountry. I'm Karolyn Mossman. I'm
President of the Kula Community Association and I've provided written testimony and
it's a laundry list of all the things that we think need to be included and funded. I'm ...
so I'm just gonna hit on a couple of key ones that I want to point out but that doesn't
mean that all the rest are not important. So please read through the whole list. We want
to make sure that the County includes adequate funding for our planning. We believe
community planning is one of the most important things we can do in this community
and we need to make sure that we have ongoing budget needs met in the planning area.
Also, as has been mentioned in a lot of other people's testimony, the road and
improvement ... road improvements and maintenance in the Up country area is becoming
quite problematic. We've been requesting for a long time for improvements along
Pulehu Road. We've seen some but certainly not all that need to be in place. Kimo
Drive is really becoming quite hazardous, Waiakoa Road, as well, and I think that we
need the County to start to do a complete review of the roads and really plan for the
improvements. It's becoming ... in many of our Upcountry roads when you have rain
like we've had recently, it can just tear out the roads. The sides just get washed out and
we really need to address all of that. So that's something that really needs to be
highlighted.
And then this is new we're adding on to the list that we need to make sure if when
vacation rental bill is passed . . . ordinance is passed that we provide needed funds to
properly manage, process, and regulate the industry to make sure that we're doing a good
job in taking care of that issue. Please read through the rest of it. If you have any
questions, all of these are things that we've been talking to you about for quite a while
and others will be coming up this evening to touch on other points but I just wanted to
make sure and highlight those.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Mossman. Members, any questions? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good evening.
MS. MOSSMAN: Hi, Danny.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: One of the issues is, is I guess titled "Hawaiian Homelands
Integration into Community"?
MS. MOSSMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Can you, can you kind of like share some light as to what this
so-called integration is with your community?
MS. MOSSMAN: Well, we want to make sure that we have ... that the Hawaiian Homelands
Projects are integrated into the community in a respectful way. We're concerned about
that we don't have strip zoning along the highway for strip malls and things like that. So
that's been one of our concerns is to make sure that the Homelands Projects fit into the
culture and climate of our rural community. But we also want to make sure and I added,
this has kind of been added on and we sent a letter to the Council earlier and to the Water
Department, that Hawaiian Homelands is being asked in their development to limit water
usage whereas others in the community are not being asked to do that and we don't find
that fair. So as they come into our community they need to be integrated fairly into our
community respecting the other aspects of our community and us respecting their rights
to be there as well. So it's kind of both sided of making sure that we plan appropriately
and integrate it properly.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And you have been in, in communication with the Department
of Hawaiian Homes to share your concerns as well?
MS. MOSSMAN: Yes. Yes, that's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Mossman? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ijust want to mention that the Water Resource Committee
has this issue as an item and we
be taking it up after Budget-MS. MOSSMAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --regarding the allocation of water.
MS. MOSSMAN: Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? If not, Ms. Mossman, thank you very much. Next to
testify we have three kids?
MS. SEFTON JOHNSTON: Well, I guess I'm a kid.... (laughter) . ..
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CHAIR KANE: Do you have kids with you?
MS. SEFTON JOHNSTON: I have kids.
CHAIR KANE: Wonderful. Then we'll let you slide.
MS. SEFTON JOHNSTON: I love that. That's the best news I've heard all day.
CHAIR KANE: So we can get 'em home and in bed before ... on a good hour.
MS. SEFTON JOHNSTON: Exactly. Thank you so much for allowing us to speak on behalf of
Maui Academy of Performing Arts. John F. Kennedy once said "all of us do not have
equal talent but all of us should have an equal opportunity to develop our talents." Maui
Academy of Performing Arts needs your help to continue to serve our children with an
equal opportunity to develop their talents. Maui Academy of Performing Arts creates
spaces for developing our young people.
For example, two young girls with
developmental disabilities dance at the Maui Arts and Cultural Center. A young boy
learns to speak clearly and confidently while performing in a play. A first grade girl
finally knows that she can set her heart free by spinning and leaping through the air in her
dance class. Enthusiastic audiences around the State witness the magic of theatre from
our touring shows. In terms of numbers, there are 800 kids in our After School Program,
5,000 students in Voices, which is reading comprehension through drama, and 13,000
children from preschool age to middle school benefit from our touring productions. For
years now we've waited for the completion of a theatre which would provide an equal
opportunity for our children. Please, please help us realize our dream. Your children,
Maui's children, are counting on you. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Can you state your name, rna' am, for the record.
MS. SEFTON JOHNSTON: Oh, I'm sorry. Sally Sefton Johnston.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnston.
MS. JOHNSTON: I'm Anneka Johnston, a MAPA student. I have been dancing in MAPA for
nine years. I have learned many things but most importantly I am very coordinate and
confident in myself from MAP A. I hope that you can support the Maui Academy of
Performing Arts so that the other children can learn as I have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Anneka.
MR. HATCHER: My name is Steve Hatcher. I've been involved with the Academy since 1993
and I've seen firsthand the difference this organization has made in our children. The
programs both in and out of the classroom provides self-esteem, team building, and gives
a sense of community early on to these children. The Maui Academy is definitely
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producing healthy building blocks for tomorrow's Maui so please, please keep them in
your consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, and before you leave, any questions, Members? Is there an existing
funding in the proposed Budget, and if not, then how much are you folks ... are you here
to provide us with some numbers?
MS. SEFTON JOHNSTON: Well, we're ask ... I think 500,000 for their building in Wailuku
which is why Jessica gave so many instances where they need help with repairs.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So it's not in the existing Budget so it's something that's being
requested of in addition.
MS. SEFTON JOHNSTON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. HATCHER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Douglas Warne and I'm sorry if I'm again mispronouncing.
Douglas Warne and Aleshanee Akin, I'm sorry again. Sir.
MR. WARNE: It's Douglas Warne. Hello, Honorable Members of the Council. My name is
Douglas Warne and I'm here in support of the MEO Business Development Corporation.
I'm a client of the Micro Loan Program and I believe a large part of what MEO does is
educate people. I believe that the educational opportunities for those that are financially,
educationally, and socially challenged should be fully funded and with all due respect I
believe that it may be a false economy not to fully fund them. MEO goes one step further
in the educational process. They provide tools to better and empower members of this
community who might not otherwise have those opportunities. They provide this
empowerment in the form of loans and these tools ... these tools in the abstract. These
loans are in tum used to acquire tools - tools for self-sufficiency, tools that facilitate
enterprise, tools that ultimately generate tax revenue. I believe a program that has the
potential to educate, generate enterprise, and in tum, tax revenue should be fully funded.
There is of course one other very important thing that MEO Business Development
Corporation provides to members of the Maui community. It provides something that all
people in the community need to prosper. It provides hope. And I want to thank you for
your support both in the past, as well as in the future.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Warne. Members, any questions for Mr. Warne? Hearing
none. Thank you for your testimony. Aleshanee Akin, followed by Elisabeth Bluml.
MS. AKIN: Hi. I'm Aleshanee Akin and my son, Alex Welsh, will speak first.
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MR. WELSH: My name is Alex and I go to Haleakala Waldorf School and I'm here to ask the
County to find ... to fund the need of speed tables on Omaopio Road. Cars go very fast
past by house which causes a risk when I walk my dog or my mom checks the mail.
MS. AKIN: Hi. Again, I'm Aleshanee Akin. I work at Haleakala Waldorf School where I have
been the painting instructor for seven years. I also work in the first grade. We live 1'l4
miles down Omaopio Road. I live with my three children at 1169 in a house that belongs
to Gordean Bailey. And the ... we live after a sharp turn in the road and trucks come
barreling down on both sides of the road and cars and trucks go very fast on this road. I
don't think they're aware that there are children and pets living along this road because it
isn't a residential area it's ago But there are houses and families all along the road. My
mailbox is across the street from my home and often when I check my mail, I have to ...
so it's very dangerous. I've come very close to losing my life on checking my mail
because when cars come around the corner very fast, there's no side on the road so I have
to kind of like climb rocks to get away from the cars. Trucks often take out my mailbox
and I have to repair the mailbox. I did testify in 2005 for the 2006 year. I'm very
concerned. We've lost pets. My neighbors and I have lost pets and I'm hoping
something will be done to prevent human life from being lost. It's a very dangerous
situation. Thank you for listening.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Akin. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
very much. Elisabeth Bluml, followed by Warren Gouveia.
MS. BLUML: Aloha, Chairman of the Finance Committee and Committee Members. My name
is Elisabeth Bluml and I own a small working organic farm on Omaopio Road. Much of
my produce is sold on the roadside stand in front of my farm. I'm asking you to fund
speed tables on my stretch of Omaopio Road from Number 1103 to 1281 due to the
danger involved on the blind corner we live on. It endangers me, other residents, and my
customers who are stopping to buy produce. I and my ten immediate neighbors and
families have been trying since 2004 to get this funding having talked to everyone from
Nolly Yagin, Traffic Section Engineer, to Mayor Alan Arakawa in his Budget meeting
for Fiscal Year 2006 with no success. In 2004 - '05, animals were killed on this lI8-mile
strip of Omaopio including two of my own pets. Families with small children as
Aleshanee and her three kids - extremely worried for their children's safety and we have
had several close calls with the children. And everyday we cross the road to get our mail
with fear that a fast driver may hit us because they cannot see around the blind curve and
we cannot hear them coming due to the shape of the curve. I have a little map here if you
want to look at that. Our section of the road is maybe an accident waiting to happen.
That's our concern. The sounds of races and large trucks coming in both directions can
be heard all over at all the hours of day and night. We are requesting speed devices
called speed tables be installed. This along with any other traffic calming devices at the
County's disposal are desperately needed. We don't want to see anymore animals or
people hurt or even worse. Please help the tax paying homeowners and families of this
stretch of road and give us a couple of signs and a few feet of lifesaving asphalt build up
in front of our homes. That's all we are really asking for. With the large surplus in the
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County's revenue this year, we really hope a part of the surplus will be used to install
such devices throughout the County. Thank you very much for your time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Bluml. Questions ... Mr. Molina, followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning ... Good evening, Ms. Bluml.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Bluml, we have questions for you.
MS. BLUML: I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: No, that's okay. Come.
MS. BLUML: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for making us aware of your concerns along
Omaopio Road, as well as the previous testifier. You answered one of my questions
earlier. I had asked if there was any type of signage to warn drivers of pedestrians.
Otherwise ...
MS. BLUML: There's nothing there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You mentioned you had ...
MS. BLUML: The mailbox is on this stretch on the opposite side. That's very dangerous and
the embankment is very steep there. So we have to kind of climb up if there's a car
coming down.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. Sounds like a dangerous situation.
MS. BLUML: Yeah, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You mentioned you talked to the Public Works Department
and the Mayor. What was their response to you when you talked to them?
MS. BLUML: Just a letter thanking for my participating, but no, nothing else.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And do you know on or about when you received this letter?
MS. BLUML: Yeah. I have it here.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
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MS. BLUML: It was October 2005 and it was also a ... there's a letter from 2004. And I also
have a letter from the mail lady. She couldn't come but she wrote a letter to you and
signed it.
CHAIR KANE: We can get that from ...
MS. BLUML: Later on?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, ma'am. We're going to take a recess pretty soon so we'll get that from
you.
MS. BLUML: Okay. Thank you so much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Hang on now, hang on, ma'am, hang on. Ms. Anderson, question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you very much for the emails that you've
sent to the Council.
MS. BLUML: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We appreciate that. You've been on this road a long time,
Elisabeth.
MS. BLUML: I've over seven years I lived there and farmed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And have you found that construction trucks are using this
road?
MS. BLUML: Very much.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: More so
MS. BLUML: And to the dump as well. People ... fully-loaded trucks, you know, speed down
to the landfill.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the use of this road has increased over the seven years?
MS. BLUML: Yeah, and those are the speed of the people driving, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. BLUML: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Next to testify and this is the last person that will testify. We're going to take a
ten minute break to allow Staff to rest their fingers, as well as you can take care of your
personal business. Mr. Warren Gouveia. And after the recess which we'll take for about
ten minutes we'll have Marty McMahon.
MR. GOUVEIA: Good evening, Council. We thank you also for showing up tonight. We also
know you have lives too. My name is Warren Gouveia.
CHAIR KANE: We'll adjust that for you .... (referring to microphone stand) . ..
MR. GOUVEIA: I really just look big. I'm not this tall. I know some of you have seen me
often, maybe too often up here, but I have a standing order with MEO for testifying. I
would even walk to Hana I think to testify for them. I sincerely appreciate their services.
I'm a stroke survivor and I now depend completely on MEO for transportation to my
social life of doctor visits, picking up medication, therapy, and so forth. I'm also in a
stroke support group and I'm also starting sort of a stroke ministry of myself where I'm
visiting hospital patients and just talking with them about there is life after stroke. So I'm
also doing workshops on self-empowerment. So I've been totally dependent on MEO
and I really appreciate your support in the past. I wish all of you could at least spend one
day riding the MEO bus and look at the people that are riding the bus. It's not only
disabled people, but elderly people who can no longer drive, some of whom have
voluntary given up their license. My dad was one of those that I kept trying to ride the
bus and he said that's for when he gets old. I just lost him four days ago. He was 9l.
But he was going to wait until he got old before he could use the bus. So I'd like to just
hope you can continue supporting MEO because if you're not using MEO, someday you
probably might or your relatives will for sure. Such a wonderful service. Thank you so
much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Gouveia. Members, any questions for Warren? Hearing none.
Appreciate your testimony. Ladies and gentlemen, we're going to take a ten minute
break. Time now is 7:30. We're going to take a break until 7:40 and we will reconvene
promptly at 7:40 and we will continue with Marty McMahon and Warren Watanabe.
You folks are in the chute. This Committee stands recess until 7:40.... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

7:30 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:41 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. We'd like to reconvene this Upcountry public hearing for March
22nd • At this time we have Marty McMahon, and following Mr. McMahon is Warren
Watanabe. Good evening.
MR. MCMAHON: Good evening. I am Marty McMahon. I am the Administrative Officer of
CWD with a cold, excuse me. First, I'd like to thank all the Council Members for these
long days that come every March and April. Thank you very much for taking the time to
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go to all these communities. You know Community Work Day. You know that it touches
most parts of the County. We're going to try and give you different aspects and looks at
Community Work Day as you visit each of these areas. I decided to give you a little bit
of a broad picture of it and I thought the best way to do that was actually to shrink it
down to one day and I thought, well, why not today. So let me give you a brief outline.
It began at 6:30. We sent a truck to Lahaina. It had supplies from Molokai and Lanai.
The supplies came to us from corporate donations. They were free to us through the
national sponsors of Keep America Beautiful and we ship them on a quarterly basis to the
County islands Molokai and Lanai. And they're worth about $1,000 a piece and these
are for, for 11 projects and cleanups on those islands scheduled between now and May
31 st. The pick-up truck was literally stuffed, by the way, because our flatbed truck was
vandalized. Our gas tanks were emptied and they did that by cutting our gas lines. So
the flatbed truck is in repair shop. It will cost us $700. It's the second time that that
happened to us since Thanksgiving and the 13 th police report that we have filed for
vandalism on us, our buildings, or our vehicles in the last 12 months. Our morning
activities included a preparing cost analysis sheets which another person in another
location will give you. We'd like to give you an idea of for every dollar you give us what
kind of value you get for that dollar and that does depend on projects so we will let you
know that as well.
We gave out 13 baskets for can and bottle recycling. We received and processed 31
gallons of good paint and four really bad paint - smelled terrible. We received and
logged in five computers, two of which can be made out of these computers - two good
ones. One of 'em already was made. I made that myself. I rebuilt one last night and
today we gave it an eight year old girl who has been transferred to custody to her
grandfather who has some health problems but the single mother has some drug issues
and has gone away for a while. She's gonna do schoolwork on it and there's a game or
two on there, as well, for her. We received some furniture. We're gonna hold this
furniture for about a month, keep it out of the landfill, and it's going to the Paia Learning
Center which is presently being built you may know on Baldwin Avenue in Paia with the
Teens On Call and Brian McCafferty. We delivered a pick-up truckload of rubbish. It
was about % ton. These were from bags from five different locations - neighborhood
park and roadway cleanups of volunteers. We received two requests for volunteer group
supports for two cleanups. The first is a week from Saturday on April Fool's Day. Sixty
volunteers will clean in and around Hookipa Park and we're preparing supplies for them.
And in between all these crevices during the day we did a little more preparation on two
private foundation grants which are due in the next two weeks. We answered 60 calls
which included literally hotline calls from Oahu and to questions of the upcommg
April 29 th Countywide cleanup which is our largest cleanup of the year.
Before I left I created a tree structure for a lesson plan DVD. We are creating this new
DVD in conjunction with the Maui Visitors Bureau and the Westin Hotel which are
donating their services. And the DVD's in five brand new DVD laptops are coming
together and will circulate in Maui schools next semester as a learning unit which can
visit a class a week at a time. They have videos. They have games. They also have PDF
- 34-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

March 22, 2006 (Pukalani)

and lesson plans for the teachers to teach them everything about how a landfill works on
up.
No one does what we do. It's pretty eclectic and it's a strange mix of education, tree
planting, garbage removal, homeless tending, fence repairing, carcass disposing (goats
are real popular lately for some reason), movie making collage that is CWD, and to be
honest there are some days we wish someone else-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. MCMAHON: --was doing it rather than us. But until that time comes along or the time
when our services are no longer needed, we're pretty darn good at it and all we do is ask
you to let us continue to do it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. McMahon. Members, questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Marty. Is there an appropriation in the Budget
for Community Work Day that you know?
MR. MCMAHON: There is. There is in operations and we haven't seen the proviso out of the
Highway Beautification Section of the Budget yet. We didn't find that online so we don't
know where that's located.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You've been doing work also at the Kahului Breakwater area
as well as you still continue to do work at the old Maui High School as well?
MR. MCMAHON: Oh, yeah. Absolutely. As a matter of fact we have two teams scheduled in
the next two months there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So do you see a need for additional funding?
MR. MCMAHON: We would like additional funding. Fun disclosure - last year the Budget,
our Operations Budget was 100 and the Council was kind enough to see fit to put 50,
which we have used, and it was dedicated solely to old Maui High. That's what we've
been using it for. This year the Budget that the Mayor presented, presented an Operations
Budget to us of 150. So the 50 we believe he decided maybe we needed more in
Operations or something so it's not specifically dedicated to old Maui High. That's
where it stands right now, Mike. We certainly can use the 50. There are, as you know,
we have an EPA grant which is handling other things, but there's a lot that we are not
allowed to cover with the EPA grant. One of them is the reconstitution of the cafeteria
building. You may have seen it lately. It's coming along with great progress. Those
offices could be occupied within a matter of weeks literally.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testimony. Warren Watanabe, followed by Alexandra Cannon.
MR. WATANABE: Good evening, Chair Kane, Members of the Budget Committee. My name
is Warren Watanabe, President of the Maui County Farm Bureau. The Maui County Farm
Bureau on behalf of its farm and ranch families and organizations appreciate your
generous support of the industry. We recognize that our success largely lies in our joint
collaboration to foster our local agriculture industry.
The Maui County Farm Bureau is a 501c(5) grass roots general agriculture advocacy
organization. We are an affiliate of the American Farm Bureau Federation and the
Hawaii Farm Bureau Federation. We support all forms of agriculture believing that the
strength of our industry lies in its diversity. We believe that many forms of agriculture is
good for Maui as well as for us within the industry as entities large and small collaborate
and share information, methods, purchasing power, and action for the benefit of all.
The Hawaii Farm Bureau has for nearly 30 years sought to pass legislation in the State to
seek legislation that would implement our Constitutional Mandate to protect and preserve
important agricultural lands in the State of Hawaii. Finally, last year we were successful
and the process has begun. However, we are keenly aware that as we seek to protect and
preserve agriculture for the future, the linkages between society and production
agriculture is not strong. While many want to see farmlands and agricultural selfsufficiency, they fail to understand the practical realities associated with commercial
farming and ranching. There is a critical need to convey this message to the community
and most importantly to our youth for it is the youth that will carry out this vision. We
need people coming back to care for the lands and produce the bounty that we hope to
have for the future. Agriculture now, not only means food and fiber, but energy as well.
This fact is often lost.
Therefore, this grant request seeks to expand our community outreach and education
program significantly. We are currently going to schools, Rotary, Kiwanis, and other
organizations to share our message to seek support of agriculture as an industry. This
grant request will expand this program. We understand that our long term success lies in
supportive public policy and it is this grassroots effort that is needed to keep our lands
green while keeping our economy strong. Open fields without agriculture is just that open fields - it should be . . . it should not be confused with income producing
agriCUlture. People need to truly understand what "Buy Local" means.
Communication includes not only the public but also within our industry. Increased
communication within the industry so collaborative action can occur is important. This
grant seeks to increase this area of service.
Maui County is currently undergoing the process of its ... preparing its General Plan.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
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MR. WATANABE: Traditionally, agricultural components within the General Plan have been
scattered throughout the various chapters within . . . without clear focus of what the
Strategic Initiative for the County is for the industry. As Maui seeks to increase its
agricultural self-sufficiency, we feel that this focus is needed and important. We,
therefore, suggest that there be an Agricultural Element associated with the General Plan.
We have discussed this with the Planning Department who agree it is a good idea. Part of
this year's funding request seeks to hire a person to assist the agricultural industry not
just members of the Farm Bureau with this effort.
And I would also like to request your support for our fellow organization, Maui Onion
Growers Association, Maui Assoc . . . Aloha Aina Association, Maui Association of
Landscape Professionals, and the Maui Cattlemen Association. And I would just like to
ask your overall support for the Office of Economic Development.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Watanabe. Questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for being here, Mr. Watanabe. What is the
funding request?
MR. WATANABE: Our total for Farm Bureau request is 200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And it ... is it currently in the Budget under ...
MR. WATANABE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's a grant under Office-MR. WATANABE: Office of Economic Development.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --of Economic ... okay, thank you.
KANE:
further questions for Mr. Watanabe, Members? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony. Alexandra Cannon.
MS. CANNON: My name is Alexandra Cannon. I am testifying for the Maui Academy of
Performing Arts. Ladies and gentlemen, I would like you to imagine, if you will, an
organization that is for everyone, not just teenagers, but children of all ages as well. It is
a structured and supervised organization, but at the same time, it's not smothering like
some after school care. Everyone gets along. There is no pressure from people who are
different. A place like this exists and it is called the Maui Academy of Performing Arts.
Good evening. My name is Alexandra Cannon. I am 13 and currently attend eighth
grade at Kalama Intermediate, and perhaps just as importantly, I'm a proud member of
MAPA. My parents introduced me to theatre at a young age, but more than ever in these
- 37 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 22, 2006 (Pukalani)

past few years. I've seen wonderful shows like Cats, Broadway Babes, and Footloose.
Since becoming involved in MAPA I've taken time to see all of their plays no matter how
small. I saw Scrooge around Christmas and I experienced a Village Fable with my
friends and Quiltmaker's Gift which was put on by my friends in the Performance Troupe
which I am now a part of.
Every play I saw I was more engulfed by the magic of the stage. I yeamed to be a part of
it. MAPA was my opportunity to do so. I have leamed and experienced much even
though I have only been involved for a short amount of time. Getting to see the theatre
from both onstage, backstage, and the audience are all wonderful experiences. Having
the opportunity to work with such connoisseurs of the arts is a privilege. Getting to work
with my friends and meet new ones only enriches the experience of the stage. Theatre is
the best thing a teenager can get into. For me it gives me something to look forward to
during school and it keeps me involved. It's something that keeps us involved. Everyone
at MAPA is there because they enjoy acting and getting together with others who have the
same interest as you. It's uplifting to anyone of any age. I cannot tell you all the friends I
have made.
But how is MAPA going to be able to keep going? They're a non-profit organization and
they need community's help with funding. We do not want to have to stop our
involvement in drama and dance - not for anything. Many of the students sacrifice the
majority of their time to MAPA but it's not because they have to. It's because they want
to.
Ladies and gentlemen, thank you so much for allowing me to speak before you tonight.
It has been both an honor and a pleasure. Good night. ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Cannon. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony. Richard Brush ... Mr. Brush, and followed by let's see ... Wesley
and Agnes already testified ... Diane Logsdon.
MR. BRUSH: Mahalo. And I mean that sincerely because . . . because of yourself and
Councilwoman Michelle Anderson that got the ball rolling. It's given me the most
wonderful year of my life. She's been working with a group of citizens and functionaries
from the Department of Water, the Department of Health, and the Environmental
Protection Agency to look at a problem that the Upcountry has suffered for a while.
That's actually a problem that goes back at least 100 years so it's hard to address it as an
emergency. But let's see ... two weeks ago in this room, Dr. Marc Edwards spoke and I
believe two of you were here and he talked about two things. One of being lead and the
other being bacteria - very serious interaction between the two focusing on the quality
of water. But the most interesting thing I think and this is why I'm here tonight is that he
... after he spoke, Dr. Lorrin Pang got up and he addressed the situation. He used the
word "outbreak" because statistically speaking we had such a event happen on Maui
which . . . with the lead with an elevation of about six times the level we found down
country and perhaps it's something more insidious which is in the bacteria where we had
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this issue ... the issue of water which is what lead to your communicating with Senator
Inouye and coming up with the grant. So this is what we've been overseeing and it's just
been a wonderful experience seeing people working together.
So, anyway, to find it actually as an emergency and that's why I'm here tonight because it
seems that the Committee is ... that is all the different organs are on the same page here
that what we need is to bring the filtration quality of the Piiholo Plant to the same level as
the Kamole and the Olinda Plant. That is the micro-filtration that would take out the
organic carbon which you can call dirt. But, you know, this is something that's been
going on I would say for a 100 years because we have a surface water system and it's
only with the funds that came with the lawsuits that got from the oil companies the
money that funded those other plants that they put in the high quality filtration that
coincidentally got out the dirt. And you see it's the dirt that feeds the bacteria. It's the
dirt that ... because of it acidifying the water through those organic carbon as dirt that
leeches the lead on and of course, these filters also take out the pesticides which they
were designed to do. And perhaps the most important to me because I've done a lot of
research into the bacterial problem and I don't know if you're aware of it, bacteria seems
to be at the heart of a lot of medical issues in our world.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR BRUSH: As science . . . medicine has moved ahead we found more and more links
between bacteria and things. And so we have these things in our water. We need to filter
our water - get it back to a pristine level. And I know we have a Mayor's Emergency
Fund and I kind of heard it from a bird in the Department of Water that it would probably
be about a $2 million issue to put in that filtration. And the last thing is I'd like to invite
you all to this room April 30 th • We're gonna have a Water Fair the Upcountry Water
Fair. We'll share a lot of our information. So I can say mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Brush, if you can state your name for the record, please.
MRBRUSH:

sorry.

Richard Brush.

CHAIR KANE: No problem. Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Brush? And just a
clarification, I wasn't here on that night. That was March 8th because I was in
Washington, DC talking about some of the next steps that we're looking at for ... for this
issue and what other things that are related to it. So-MR BRUSH: Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: --we look forward to communicating that at some future point. But thank you,
Mr. Brush for your testimony. Diane Logsdon, followed by Teya Penniman.
MS. LOGSDON: Hi. My name is Diane Logsdon. I'm President of the Kula Chapter of AARP
and we want to thank you very much for funding again the MEO bus. You're probably
- 39-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

March 22, 2006 (Pukalani)

getting tired of hearing about the bus. But we really appreciate it. It allows us to go on
excursions and help us in our programs. The other thing is the Kula Shuttle which is my
lifeline to Kahului and I really appreciate that very much. But none of this would be
possible without a bus bam and I understand that the bus bam has been cut from the
Budget and I would like to see you provide funds for the bam. I guess it's called a
maintenance something or other. It's not a bus bam but it's what I call it. That's it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Logsdon. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testimony. Teya Penniman, and Ms. Penniman will be followed by Joylynn
Oliveira.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you. Aloha, Chairman Kane, Council Members. I am Teya
Penniman, Manager of the Maui Invasive Species Committee. And I first want to thank
you for being here tonight. I know these Budget hearings are long days for all of you so
thank you. I'm here to also ... also to thank you for your continued support and to
request that you approve those portions of the proposed Budget that address invasive
species, specifically funds in the Water Department budget and also in the Office of
Economic Development.
I simply want to note a few points. First, the Maui Invasive Species Committee works on
all islands of Maui County - Maui, Lanai, Molokai, and Kahoolawe. Molokai has its
own invasive species committee but MISC manages the funds and administers those
projects overall so County funds here go to support work on Molokai as welL On Lanai,
there is not an invasive species committee but we send our crews there. Lately, we have
been going every quarter over to Lanai to work on fountain grass working cooperatively
with the Lanai Company there. As you may know, fountain grass is widespread on the
Big Island where it is fuel for wildfires so we consider that to be a high priority.
Second, our County dollars are very highly leveraged. While support from the County
continues to be absolutely critical to our continued success, it's important for you to
know that funding also comes from State and Federal agencies so it really is a
collaborative process. Unfortunately, we are looking at the end of one of those sources of
funding for us and that is from National Park Service funding and that money has
supported our Hana crew. It's gone specifically for their salaries for the last several years
and so we are actively looking to find funding to replace that source. But again, just to
highlight that continued County funding is essential to continue that work.
Third, we're hoping that this year the Legislature will again provide additional funding to
address coqui frogs. At present the House Budget bill contains approximately $2 million
dedicated specifically for coqui frogs but under the current bill that entire amount would
be allocated to the Big Island. There also is another separate bill that would again
provide a grant and aid to the counties as it did last year and last year you dedicated that
entire funding to the Maui Invasive Species Committee and those funds were put to very
good use and continue to be put to good use. We currently have a crew of five people
who are working pretty much every night on coqui frogs on Maui, including tonight.
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They are out there as we speak. We are slowly but steadily making headway against
coqui frogs on our island but we need to continue that process and that again, as I know
we've explained before, does not include Maliko Gulch. It would take significant
additional resources in order to address that infestation.
We also continue to make headway against a host of other species banana bunchy top
virus, miconia, and other targets as well. So thank you again for your continued support.
With your help MISC will continue working to protect-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. PENNIMAN: --Maui County from the most harmful invasive species that threaten our
environment, economy, and quality of life. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Penniman. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming tonight, Ms. Penniman. Is the
funding ... (cough). .. excuse me, is the funding in the Water Department and OED, is
that flat or is there an increase?
MS. PENNIMAN: It's flat.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: It's flat from last year.
MS. PENNIMAN: Yes. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how much was dedicated towards coqui frogs last
year?
MS. PENNIMAN: Last year, there was 100,000 that came from the State that went to the
County and then you allocated that and then you also had a separate allocation of 50,000.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So 150 went to coqui last year?
MS. PENNIMAN: I estimate that ... my estimation is that it takes about ... we're spending
about 240,000 a year on coqui frogs presently.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what would it ... I know I asked you this last year
and it's probably going to be much more outrageous this year. What would it take to
eradicate the coqui in Maliko Gulch?
MS. PENNIMAN: We've just recently completed a comprehensive plan looking at Maliko
Gulch where we've outlined the full extent of the infestation and essentially divided it up
into three different areas with a different strategy for each area and we're estimating
somewhere between 750 to ... 750,000 to a million.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is there any hope that we're gonna get any money
from the State towards the coqui problem?
MS. PENNIMAN: I believe that we will get some funding from the State. It's currently in a
state of flux right now as to whether or not how much of that will come out. I am fairly
certain that there will be some additional funding. But what I don't know is whether or
not that will be flat, so essentially another 100,000 for Maui or if it will be increased. I
am certain that there will be a significant increase in funding for the Big Island. The Big
Island Legislators have been very active. Essentially, they did a tour around all of Big
Island. I think they had something like 12 or 13 town hall meetings and they heard loud
and clear from their constituents that the coqui frogs were loud and clear so, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, it's at a crisis level over there, right?
MS. PENNIMAN: It is.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And we don't want that to happen here.
MS. PENNIMAN: We don't, and we believe that we have a chance to prevent that if significant
steps are taken now. We truly believe that. With the crew that we have in place with the
work that they're doing, with the public education and outreach that we've developed,
and the cooperation from landowners, we truly are making a difference.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So aside from Maliko, if you just got 150 towards the
coqui frog, you think that you could, you could . . . it would help in your effort to
eradicate in those areas other than Maliko?
MS. PENNIMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, and then one other question. When you
went to Lanai, you worked with Lanai Company, did you discuss their watershed or I
mean fountain grass doesn't grow on the watershed does it?
watershed areas. On the Big Island it's up in a fairly high
MS. PENNIMAN: It can grow
elevation. Most ... so far, as far as we know, on Lanai it's in more of the dry area.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so ...
MS. PENNIMAN: But we've not done thorough surveys up into the watershed at present.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And has Lanai Company asked for any assistance in their
watershed area?
MS. PENNIMAN: No, they have not.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And do you know if they're doing anything about water
management in ... watershed management?
MS. PENNIMAN: I am not familiar with their efforts in terms of watershed management.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. The reason I ask that is they have one aquifer and
last time I heard their watershed area was in danger so I'm just wondering why they
didn't solicit help from you.
MS. PENNIMAN: In terms of looking at other invasive species in the area?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah, yeah. Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. PENNIMAN: Okay. Thank you. Also, just along those lines for Molokai, we are
conducting aerial surveys. Miconia has not been found on Molokai, but unless you look,
you don't know if it's there or not, and just this week additional surveys are being done
on Molokai. So far no miconia has been found there.
CHAIR KANE: Thank goodness.
MS. PENNIMAN: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any further questions? Hearing none. Teya, thank you very much.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Joylynn Oliveira, followed by Moses Regidor.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Aloha, hia e kakou. My name is Joylynn Oliveira. I'm the Public Relations
and Education Specialist for Maui Invasive Species Committee. I have been with the
Committee for over a year now and have been extremely impressed with the work that
we do there at MISC. I have the key task of reaching out to the public and educating
them about our efforts and also getting people to support prevention of invasive species
from entering into Maui Nui. I also specialize in getting permissions for our crew to get
into private and public landowner properties so that we would be able to get to the
invasive species. Public relations and education is a critical and key component in our
program and it obviously is the key to prevention. For miconia, for example, is, you
know, several decades ago if we were able to find the first miconia plant, it would take,
you know, couple dollars to just eradicate that one plant. But now we are spending an
extremely large amount of money on covering thousands and thousands of acres that are
threatened by miconia at this time. So by supporting prevention in our County we will be
able to make sure that things like this don't get out of hand, and as Teya mentioned, coqui
frogs are one of those stories that we could have a success story.
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Prevention is the most cost effective dollar that you can spend. It saves the County
money. It saves us money and it can be spent to many of ... shared with all these other
programs I have been prevented ... presented to you this evening. Through prevention
we also have the opportunity to detect early in the picture that there are other invasive
plants and animals out there and stop it before it becomes a huge problem.
As well as, MISC specializes in rapid response. When there's snake calls, we're the first
ones out there most of the time along with DLNR and some other key government
agencies. When there's the gall wasp out there, we're out there. Counting wiliwili trees
didn't know that there were so many thousands in Kihei alone. A good example is
miconia in Makawao. Who would have thought? But, yes, last summer we got a report
from a resident in Makawao that there was an unusual plant growing out of his hapuu
fern. And he had this hapuu in his yard for over three years. He knew that it came from
the Big Island and just one tiny miconia seed that's about the size of a sand grain hitched
a ride on that miconia [sic] plant and three years later decided to sprout and out of the
hapuu we had a miconia plant. So as our rapid response program calls for, through
education that person knew to call us. We came down from Piiholo Road and-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. OLIVEIRA: --our crew member identified it and removed it there.
We also have been very successful in reaching out with the County. At the County Fair
we reached over 3,200 people that visited our booth and we also were able to ... we
talked to the Hana community. We had a display at the library there where a majority of
the community saw the display about miconia. As some of the others kids earlier this
evening mentioned about the ant project with their EAST Program, we were also part of
that. So our educational components are out there and we really are appreciative of all
the support that you have given us and we plan on continuing our education program to
benefit you, the County, as well as all the community members here. I'd like to just close
with an oielo noeau that I also like to bring up which is a ohe hana nui ke alu ia which
means no task is too big when done together by all. . . .(change tape) . .. And I really
appreciate your time this evening. Together I'm sure we can make a difference and
prevent those invasive species from coming into Maui Nui. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Mahalo, Joylynn. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi. Ms. Oliveira, thank you for being here. You said that
part of your job is to outreach to landowners to get access to their property?
MS. OLIVEIRA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I understand that Mr. Castleton who has a nursery in South
Maui has finally allowed the County andlor MISC to go in and inspect his nursery. Can
you give us a status ... just a brief status update on what that situation is now?
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MS. OLIVEIRA: I think Teya Penniman might be the better person to answer that question.
Can I have her answer it?
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you for the question. We are actively working with both
Mr. Castleton and Rick Armour who is a co-owner of one of those two parcels. He has
two parcels right there off South Kihei Road. It's the smaller one. It's right on South
Kihei and then there's a larger one that's almost a three-acre parcel and that's the one that
is slated for development across the street. Yes, and Mr. Castleton has been very
cooperative with us as has his partner. So I think we will be there. We worked on the
smaller property earlier this week and we'll work on the other one later this month. But
it's not, as is always true, it's not a one-shot deal. There are many repeat visits but I think
they're being very interested in addressing the problem at this point. So, yes, it's very
goodnews.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, it is. Thank you. Any other questions, Members? Hearing none. Thank
you very much.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Appreciate your testimony this evening. Moses Regidor or Regidor, excuse me.
Right on, and then we have John Han. And again, if I'm not pronouncing your name
correctly, you can correct me when you come up.
MR. REGIDOR: Good evening. My name is Moses Regidor and I'm here to support MEO's
Kahi Kamalii Early Childhood Development Center. Kahi Kamalii's mission is simpleto provide affordable childcare to working families for children under age of three. With
the help of County funds, the Center is able to purchase necessary supplies that ensure the
Center is able to safely and effectively operate. These funds are also used to provide
need-based tuition assistance for families who live paycheck to paycheck. Mine is one of
those families and without tuition assistance it might not be affordable enough for us to
send our son there. For my wife and I, childcare is a necessity. We both work full-time
just to make ends meet as well as both attend MCC full-time. Kahi Kamalii is integral in
allowing us to continue our education. I'm here to stress the importance of this program
and to request that you financially support Kahi Kamalii to the fullest extent possible.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Regidor. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thanks for your
testimony. John Han, followed by Lavina Silva-Rocha.
MR. HAN: Mr. Chairman and Council Members, Guests. I just have a few questions. I had an
hour's testimony but I found out from Joe that it's only three minutes .... (chuckles) . ..
So I'll keep it to three minutes. The highest service department you have is the driver
license area and it's unfortunate that I think you folks made a commitment about a year
ago that you okayed for two more individuals to be hired in that driver license examiners.
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Unfortunately, that never happened. And I'm not blaming you at all because all you did
is to approve or disapprove. However, it's getting worse because we receiving calls at
home now and the only reason why we receiving calls is because my wife is a driver
license examiner. The only answer we can give them is say, well, the best thing to do is
write a letter to Councilor call the Mayor. But I don't think they getting results out of it.
And it's so sad because there's multiple things that need to be improved and that's why
I'm here tonight to kind of help them to testify in their behalf
One of 'em it's a damn shame to have you folks pay I think in excess of $12,000 a month
in Kahului and then you give 'em a little wagon, a mobile house, with three desk in there
and all the people, applicants, cannot enter in there to wait because there's no room for
them like in Kahului. I'm talking about driver testing now. I hope that if you multiply
that amount of money you could have built something real comfortable for them plus the
public that comes there and wait in the cold weather and sometimes it rains, you know,
like this winter, and it's so sad that they have to wait outside. So I'd like to suggest that
this all is the fault of poor management. And I suggest that if somebody in the ... is
assigned to that committee, create a questionnaire and send it to the employees and find
out what the problem is. Words not going mean anything, but if you have something in
writing, those are factual things that they're gonna be writing down because they don't
have to answer it ... I mean they don't have to sign it, you see. And I would like to see
that happening in the near future because only recently a driver license examiner failed a
gentleman and he threatened to blow up the place so he was tumed in and arrested.
That's just one case but I know everyday they have people threatening them.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. HAN: There are three women testers female and two male, you see, and not only that but
the manager's car was stolen and was in a wreck. Somebody stole all the parts. And
several of the driver license examiners, apparently, they failed the individual and they
took it hard and they keyed the whole car. You know, they have nice cars now. And that
should not happen, you see. That's another area that I think you should put an officer
during the working hours. That's my suggestion. Now, you have any questions?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

you can state your name for the record, please.

MR. HAN: Yeah. Alright. One more thing ...
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Han, if you can state your name for the record, please.
MR. HAN: Oh, John Han.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Han. Members, any questions for Mr. Han? Hearing none.
Thank you very much and you have one more thing. Go ahead.
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MR. HAN: In closing, I'd like to say this. When you enter this building, everybody think you're
invited to a dinner but so ... no, they came to see me. Are they bringing goodies for us
tonight? I think I'll bring it up then the next meeting because it's a party hall so they
expected doughnuts and coffee. Thank you very much ... . (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Han. Lavina Silva-Rocha, and following Ms. Rocha is Paula
Holroyde ... Holroyde, I believe.
MS. SILVA-ROCHA: Hi. Good evening. I'm Lavina Silva-Rocha and I live in ... on Waiakoa
Road. I've been there for about 25 years. I don't belong to any organization but I belong
to a neighborhood. And we are in need of having our road fixed. That's Waiakoa Road
which is right off King K ... King Kekaulike Highway and it's about three-quarter of a
mile up mountainside, very steep and it's like a roller coaster. The road was paved about
15 years ago and with all the heavy equip ... trucks and cement trucks and everything
that goes up that road, the road is really in bad shape and it is only about 10, 12-feet wide.
So being that it's a dead end street we really do have a problem with cars meeting on the
way up and down. Where just last year where a big truck was hauling plywood, a whole
skip fell on the road and it ... my poor neighbors couldn't get home for about three hours
until they cleared the road. And ... so I would really appreciate if you folks would look
into it and I can't understand why the County keeps giving permits and they don't bother
to come and check the neighborhood to see what condition the roads are in. We have
million dollar homes coming up all around us where, you know, ten years ago we had
maybe eight neighbors on that road. Now we have 40. So it is where it needs to be
addressed for safety and we are really ... it's very dangerous. So thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Rocha. Members, any questions? And this is Waiakoa Road,
Members, not Waiko, like in Waikapu, but Waiakoa Road-MS. SILVA-ROCHA: Waiakoa Road.
CHAIR KANE: --up in Kula.
MS. SILVA-ROCHA: There's a Waiakoa Road and a Waiakoa Place.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MS. SILVA-ROCHA: So it's the main road that goes up. It's a dead end street.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. SILVA-ROCHA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Appreciate your testimony.
MS. SILVA-ROCHA: You're welcome. Good night.
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CHAIR KANE: Good night. Paula Holroyde, followed by Tom Liu.
MS. HOLROYDE: Good evening, Councilmen. I'm Paula Holroyde, a long time Kula resident.
I come before you tonight very briefly on two topics. First, Hapapa Road, and secondly,
bike tours. We do not need a speed bump on Hapapa Road. We already have bumps,
dips, cracks, and potholes. The upper portion of Hapapa Road was first paved in the
early 60's. The upper portion of Hapapa Road was last paved in the early 60's. We do
not want to be moved to the top of the paving list, as the ag water line is scheduled to
come down Hapapa Road. I do hope after the construction crews and mach . . .
machinery exacerbate our bumps, dips, cracks, and potholes, .6 of a mile road can be
resurfaced.
My second point is I'm not here asking for money. I strongly feel that the present $250
permit fee and the $1 million liability coverage of the bicycle companies are required to
pay is too manini. The cost to the County infrastructure for police, fire, ambulance,
emergency rooms, litigation, County liability insurance, litigation settlements, far exceed
what the bike companies are paying. Maui taxpayers should stop subsidizing the bike
companies. I am a strong believer in "pay to play". Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Holroyde. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I didn't get her name.
CHAIR KANE: If you can state your name again for the record one more time.
MS. HOLROYDE: Paula Holroyde.
CHAIR KANE: H-o-l-r-o-y-d-e. Thank you very much for your testimony. Members, next
testifier is Tom Liu. He'll be followed by Brooke Richert.
MR.

My name is Tom
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, would it be
possible for ... we're testifying for the tennis courts for the Up country, can we testify as
a group not speak as a group but individually altogether? Is it possible? If not ...

CHAIR KANE: It's possible although because we're taking it in the order that it was received if
we let you all cut, then we're gonna restrict you to the three minute plus the minute to
conclude for all of you.
MR. LID: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Since everybody else came in with the understanding that it's a first sign up,
first serve so ...
MR. LID: I understand, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. LID: Again, my name is Tom Liu. I'm a pennanent resident of Kula community and I've
been here almost two years. And I am a recreational tennis player. It allows me for a
healthy life and enjoyment, quality of life. I joined a tennis team, the Upcountry tennis
team and that allowed me to play tennis in different public courts around the island. And
it was a surprise to me that whenever the Upcountry team has home matches we always
played in Wailuku or Kahului. I found out that's because of the shortage of tennis courts
in the Upcountry area. What we have in Upcountry are two tennis courts in Kula, a
community center, and that's in excellent condition. I would say that based on the places
I've played around the island, it's probably the most well-kept tennis court. And then the
two in Pukalani, one in Paia, one in Haliimaile, and those are not in very good condition.
The ... I was just curious because the local ... the local league and the USTA league and
the required minimum tennis courts in one facility is four courts and that's the reason
why we cannot hold our own home matches. But I was curious as to why the shortage of
the Up country tennis courts and I did some research and came up with some data and I
hope you have that. And it certainly, if you look at that, certainly it shows that this
disproportion of available tennis courts for the available residents. And it indicates that
West Maui, they have about 2,000 residents per tennis court, public tennis courts, and
same ... almost same as Central Maui, and the same as South Maui. And Up country,
we're talking about 6,000 residents per tennis court.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. LID: So I ask for your understanding and consideration for additional tennis courts for the
Upcountry players. Upcountry players are the people from Haiku and from all the
surrounding area plays on these two tennis courts. Thank you for your understanding and
I hope you look at us who lives in Up country and we want to be able to enjoy the
available tennis courts in what you have provided the other communities. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr.
Members, any questions? Hearing none.
your testimony. Brooke Richert, I hope.

you for

MS. RICHERT: Richert (pronounced "Richard").
CHAIR KANE: Richert, I'm sorry,-MS. RICHERT: Close. That's good.
CHAIR KANE: --followed by Steve Sutrov.
MS. RICHERT: My name is Brooke Richert and I just want to make two quick comments about
the Up country water situation and even though they're quick I do feel very strongly about
them. The first one is about adding water ... phosphate to the water and I think it's a
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really bad idea. The last time it was done it created a bacteria bloom that caused many,
many medical problems - some that persist today. The second one is about the granulated
activated carbon filter that's for the whole Upcountry system that's being considered and
I think that that's a really good idea. And the reason, the main reason that I think that's a
good idea is that it prevents the problem before it gets started so that the bacteria ... the
food for the bacteria is taken out so that the bacteria doesn't get to grow in the first place.
So you're preventing the problem instead of trying to deal with it after the fact. And once
the system gets contaminated we know that it's a really difficult problem to deal with. So
... and I also believe that this needs to sort of be considered for the Emergency Funds
because if we wait years, it's going to be an even bigger problem medically, specifically.
Thanks for your consideration.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Richert. Members, any questions? Just to be clear,
Ms. Richert, the $2 million is not something that's in the current proposed Budget, is that
correct?
MS. RICHERT: I believe that's right.
CHAIR KANE: And so the request is to consider it on an emergency basis?
MS. RICHERT: Right.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and that's for the GAC filtration?
MS. RICHERT: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much for your testimony. Steve Sutrov, followed by
Gill McBarnet and Tara McBarnet. So we're getting the tennis folks bunched up after all.
MR. SUTROV: Hopefully, we might be spread out a little bit.
CHAIR KANE:
you want Gill and Tara to come up as well. I mean that's since you folks are
next you can come right and dovetail right off Mr. Sutrov.
MR. SUTROV: Great. My name is Steve Sutrov. Thanks for coming up here and you guys look
as fresh as you did at 9:00 this morning on TV so thank you very much. Dedicatedreally an example for hardworking people on this island. Yeah, I'm first speaking ... got
couple of hats here, Kula Community Association, Parks Committee Chair, also I'm
Director of the Kula Tennis Club. The project that we've been working on here and
offering through the County to work with the County on it and hoping the County is in
support of it with the Master Plan. Three years ago now it's been ready for construction
and hopefully this year we'll have enough funds to start with Phase 1 of the project which
is each year we're basically asking for the same thing and the community even needs it
more and more every year. We need four courts to start any kind of program whether it's
lessons or MIL tournaments I mean MIL play or USTA league play. You can't do it with
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two courts and there's no four court facility Upcountry. And so that's what we're asking
for, the opportunity to start supplying the community with programs for our seniors, for
our youth, for everybody, from with ... that have all abilities from wheelchair tennis to
our super senior league.
It's a real asset. It's a pro-active funding measure where you put money towards
something so you don't have to put money towards something later on because this is
going to involve the youth in activity - healthy activity. It took me off the street when I
was kid in the 60's in the Bay Area and it gave me a reason to stay healthy and ... where
a lot of my friends weren't as lucky. And tennis has been treating me good ever since and
it's a great sport and I really hope that this is the year to support this. As far as the parks
go, it's the lowest maintenance type activity and facility that you can actually build. The
community can take care of this with buying nets. I hang the wind screens, do the weed
eating, whatever it takes. The passive park area is something for everybody that's going
to be above that's going to be planned someday and that can even be built by the
community. I can see that happening and maintained by the community if the Parks
Department will let us do that. And so it's a park for everyone. You have the gate ball
there which we'll be incorporating another gate ball court in the second phase which will
be utilizing the entire area which is something we need to do in the small parks in Kula
because we're never going to build a large park in Kula again. It's just not possible, but
we can maximize this park. With Phase 1, I hope it can move forward. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Sutrov. Members, any questions? Just to be clear, there is a
dollar amount in the Budget this year, Mr. Sutrov?
MR. SUTROV: There is, sir, 1.3 million-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. SUTROV: --for the facility. The main expense though is the road which is I guess a
above. It's not necessarily
condition with the property owners to supply the property
for the courts and that site work alone.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. SUTROV: One question, Chair. I do have another item which I was told I was only going
to get three minutes for a totally different subject. May I come back for that after
everybody I guess?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. We can have you sign up for a separate item and come back. That's fine.
MR. SUTROV: Alright. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. I said Gill, maybe it's Jill?
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MS. GILL MCBARNET: Gill (pronounced "Jill"), correct, yes. I'm Gill McBamet and my
husband Terry and I live in Kula. We have three children and all five of us play tennis.
The last few years ... well, we were delighted when the two courts were built but over
the last few years ... (cough) . .. excuse me, over the last few years we've noticed that
there's been more and more demand for the tennis courts. I guess the Kula population is
getting bigger. There's greater demand which means there's longer waits to play. Once
we're delighted that there is this interest in tennis because we love the sport.
Nonetheless, you know, we have to wait 30 minutes, 45 minutes, sometimes to playa
game of tennis. For this reason, I take my daughter, Tara, over to tennis on the other side
of the island to Wailea. We wish we could have a youth program in Kula. I know it was
the dream of Leilani Magee. I'm sure she's spoken to you before and we look forward
someday to there being a youth program in Kula. But right now I drive my daughter, you
can see, I drive her to tennis in Wailea and two other girls because it's just great to have
the program. It's nice to be able to take the kids out of school, take them straight down to
tennis, and have them get on the court and play. Anyhow, so it would be great to see a
youth program for the youth but I'll just wind up my little argument. We'd love to see
more tennis courts. The weather in Kula is perfect for tennis. It's dry. We don't have the
wind. Perfect conditions. You got a very keen popUlation - so many tennis players out
there. Please can we have more tennis courts. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. McBamet. Tara.
MS. TARA MCBARNET: Hi. I'm Tara McBamet and I've been playing tennis for four years
and I love it and I was wondering if we can have more tennis courts so we don't have to
wait so long just to play.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your testimony. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one comment. Tara, you're very stylish in your togs.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Joanne Shibuya, and following Ms. Shibuya is Lee Marteney.
MS. SHIBUYA: Chairman Kane, Council Members, mahalo for the opportunity to speak
tonight. I am Joanne Shibuya and I'm testifying on behalf of important members of our
community - our youths specifically, the safety of students attending public schools.
As Budget and Facility Specialist for the DOE, Baldwin Complex, which includes
Baldwin High School, lao, Waihee, Wailuku, Adult Education, and Puunene Schools, I
ask for your support to construct raised crosswalks on South Market Street and Kaohu
Street along lao School. Two years ago, lao Administration Office relocated from Noeau
Street to Market Street in a renovated historic Armory Building. There are no crosswalks
fronting the school on Market Street and the school traffic into and from the school
shifted to Market and Kaohu Streets. In addition, drivers traveling down Kaohu Street do
not adhere to the posted 20 miles per hour speed limit. A few years ago a student, while
in the crosswalk, was hit by a car traveling down Kaohu Street. Raised crosswalks at
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existing crosswalks on Kaohu Street and new raised crosswalks on Market Street would
surely create a safer environment for our children commuting to and from school. For the
sake of students' safety, please fund this project.
On another similar matter I take this opportunity to describe another hazardous condition
at Baldwin High School. Halia Nakoa is a County public road that separates the school
gym from the school campus. This County road which has public access during school
hours jeopardizes students' safety while commuting to and from school and while
changing classes to and attending school activities in the gym. Halia Nakoa is an
evacuation route for drills and emergencies, has no crosswalk at its intersection and
during peak hours presents a very dangerous traffic situation for our students and their
families. Baldwin High School would like to thank the Public Works Committee for their
support to control vehicle traffic during school hours and request that the Committee and
the Department of Public Works continue with this effort before any student injury
occurs. Photos illustrating these traffic conditions -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. SHIBUYA: --have been provided to your Committee and thank you very much for your
consideration of these conditions ... traffic conditions.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Shibuya. Members, any questions for Ms. Shibuya? You have
your hand up, Ms. Anderson? You can grab your mike.
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much for coming tonight. In the handout
that you gave us, I'm assuming you gave this to us, it shows that there's $40,000 for
construction earmarked for next year's budget for the lao ... Kaohu Street and South
Market Street for speed tables and signing and strip age [sic] ... striping. It doesn't say
anything about crosswalks.
MS. SHIBUYA: I believe the raised crosswalks are the-COUNClLMEMBERANDERSON: Speed tables?
MS. SHIBUYA: --speed tables. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, you know, this school was just recently renovated.
MS. SHIBUYA: The Administration Office relocated from the Noeau Street to the Armory
Building and as a result now the front of the school is Market Street and there are no
crosswalks on Market Street fronting the school.
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: I see. Well, would this normally be an expense that DOE
would fund?
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MS. SHIBUYA: This is a County road or these are County roads.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah, but the crosswalks are to service the school.
MS. SHIBUYA: I ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Not necessarily?
MS. SHIBUYA: I applied for funding with the DOE and they responded back that these are
County streets and must be funded by the County.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. SHIBUYA: And so we approached the County for this.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and did they give you any reason why they didn't
fund it this year?
MS. SHIBUYA: I understand that they put it in the Budget and it is a line item. That was my
understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I must be confused then because, yeah, what you've
got ... what you've given us shows it's funded for next Fiscal Year.
MS. SHIBUYA: That's my understanding is what they're ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, but I think we need to fund it now.
MS. SHIBUYA: We would like to fund it now. In fact, it should have been funded two years
ago when all this plan had started. Yes, I agree with you there, and this is why we are
trying to take the steps to get it installed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming and bringing this to our attention.
MS. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Hi, Joanne.
MS. SHIBUYA: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Ironically, myself and Milton Arakawa, as well as my
Legislative Assistant, were discussing this item in regards to raised crosswalks on Market
Street fronting lao School-MS. SHIBUYA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --as well as Kaohu Street. ... (change tape). .. I know
we had done some signage to notify the public that, you know, school areas are 20 miles
per hour but we'll follow-up on the crosswalks.
MS. SHIBUYA: Great! Thank you so much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Shibuya. Members, any other questions? Hearing none.
MS. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Appreciate your testimony. Thank you.
MS. SHIBUYA: Thank you, Council Members.
CHAIR KANE: Lee Marteney, and again, please pronounce your name for me.
MR. MARTENEY: You did it very well. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and you'll be ... following Mr. Marteney is Patricia Aiken.
MR. MARTENEY: My name is Lee Marteney. My neighbors and I respectfully request a
budget item next year for paving Hapapa Road. It's about half a mile up from Kekaulike
Avenue up on the mountainside and I understand it was paved and built initially in the
1960's and it is in a state of disrepair and there are patches upon ten year old patches
upon last year's patches and it needs ... it needs some attention.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Marteney.
Ms. Anderson.

Members, any questions for Mr. Marteney?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The lady that was just speaking previously about, Paula ...
MR. MARTENEY: Holroyde.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. She said they don't need speed humps there so ...
MR. MARTENEY: Don't need speed bumps because it's so rough-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Oh, that's what she meant.
MR. MARTENEY: --you can't go fast.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I was just gonna ... I see.
MR. MARTENEY: Once it's paved it will need a couple of speed bumps on it.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MARTENEY: For right now, you can't speed on it without wrecking your car.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Hearing none. Mr. Marteney, thank you for your
testimony. And for the rest of you who are on the tail end of this adventure this evening
we appreciate your patience. Hang in there. We're just about there. Patricia Aiken,
followed by Elliott Krash.
MS. AIKEN: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for your patience tonight listening
to us all, and I just want to say I'm Patricia Aiken and I'm an addict but I won't be with
the Aloha House testimony. I'm with the Kula tennis people because tennis is my drug of
choice and it's probably what keeps me from being an Aloha House client. Well, I'm
healthy right now. I had an accident recently. But I'll play tennis three or four times a
week and Kula is by far the very best tennis courts on the island. I've played everywhere
except Hana. I've never had an opportunity to play in Hana but if one came along I
would make the most of it. And we've been talking about this for a long time. I know
you see Steve. You're probably on his Christmas card list.
We've been talking about this for a long time. The need hasn't gone away. If anything,
it's increased. And even though I haven't lived Up country this entire year, I've lived in
Spreckelsville, I still go to Kula to play tennis because it's ideal conditions as Gill pointed
out. There's very ... maybe in five years I've maybe been rained out five times. So it's
just . . . it's an amazing place. We need to have more courts for all those . . . for the
USTA things, all of those things. You know, I'm 50 years old and I play tennis, you
know, three or four times a week. You don't see too many 50 year old women playing
soccer three or four times a week and we put lots of energy into soccer things. This is a
lifelong sport. You'll see plenty of 50, 60, and 70 year oids playing tennis.
It's something that is great development for children. It teaches them leadership and all
those good, you know, team type things that they get, you know, sportsmanship. All
those things that you can't go wrong. This is a wonderful thing to fund and you won't be
sorry. You'll get a lot of kudos from the community over it and we need to see you all at
the Nurses Tournament this year.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Ms. Aiken. Members, any questions? Hearing none.
Thank you. Ms. Krash is going to be followed by William Kleinwachter.
MS. KRASH: My name is Elliott Krash and I'm speaking this evening for the Kula AARP. I'm
not sure how many of our AARP members play tennis, but after hearing their testimony I
think I want to take it up and start a group to do that. First of all, a big mahalo to you all
for being here all evening and the evenings you have ahead of you, and especially for
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what you've done in the past that's brought some of this important services and programs
to the Up country community and to Upcountry seniors.
I want to speak briefly on some of the MEO services that benefit the seniors. You've
heard about some of those and some of the other things that are important to the entire
community and also the seniors Upcountry - the Kula Community Center, the Kula
Ambulance, and the Upcountry Pool. As you've heard from many testifiers tonight, these
MEO programs are like the lifeblood of the community. They create the fabric of our
society. Our community is only as strong as its weakest link so all of these programs are
so essential. Now, too, that are especially important for the seniors you've heard a lot
about the transportation. And actually the MEO Transportation benefits people in many
of these other programs because that's how they get to it. But for the seniors you've
heard from them. It's not only those who are unable to drive because of disabilities but
because of age and other problems, and especially for Upcountry where we're so isolated
by distance that this is essential for them.
It's also something that I've learned since joining AARP riding that bus to the special
events. It brings people together on the bus when we go on the excursions and on the
field trips and it's much nicer than taking the drive all the way to the other side of the
island when we have a special meeting or special function. As you know, the folks go to
the Taro Festival or the Aloha Luncheon, the other AARP functions. So it's a really
important service to keep the seniors an active part of the community. I'd also like to
speak briefly about the MEO's support for the senior clubs. Every senior club meeting,
every AARP meeting, we have a rep there from MEO. Also, MEO hosts a monthly
meeting for reps from each senior club. It's an informational, an educational opportunity,
and a social opportunity. They have speakers that are from the different agencies that
provide social services and provide needed information on the services and they share
among themselves.
Now, a few of the specific things Upcountry that have benefited the entire community
and seniors - the Kula Community Center improvements. The tennis courts have helped
everybody and the seniors who do play. The gate ball court, as you know, is very
popular. But you've heard about the other needs the building rotting, falling apart,
needing painting, needing a new floor, new kitchen cabinets, et cetera. Just little things,
manini things, the clock, the bulletin board, the clock - the hands are falling off.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. KRASH: And the Upcountry Pool heater, thank you, thank you, thank you, for what you've
done so far and we need continued help in moving that along and we need to look in the
at year budgets for wind abatement measures once we get the heater fixed because the
wind just whips across there and takes all the heat out.
Kula Ambulance - again, thank you. So important to our Upcountry community. I think
I list it in my ... we're averaging 20, 25 calls per month in the hours that the ambulance
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used to be off hours. In other words, at night hours where we now have it - 20 to 25 a
month. That's that many people whose lives have been saved or rescued. And in the
future we need to look at full State funding for this and we need to work together on that.
And again, I want to say thank you for your work with the community. I think the
testament to you is how many people show up here and share with you-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. KRASH: --some of the concerns. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Krash. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony. William Kleinwachter, followed by Ginny Parsons.
MR. KLEINWACHTER: That's close

Kleinwachter.

CHAIR KANE: Wachter. Thank you.
MR. KLEINWACHTER: I'm Bill Kleinwachter. I'm at 150 Mahiai Place, about three miles up
Piiholo. Piiholo is dear to our heart. We were here last year. We do appreciate the
emergency funding you gave us. I guess to some extent, we're a year later, I just want to
let you know that the road on Piiholo is about twice as bad as it was last year. It is
deteriorating fast. We're getting more desperate. A lot of our vehicles are being tom up
left and right and there's no way to avoid it. And I'm not talking speeding on this thing.
I'm talking doing less than 20 miles an hour all the way up Piiholo. I guess what really
disturbs us is when we saw the Mayor's Budget and saw nothing in there for Piiholo.
Now, it was our understanding that the 400,000 was an emergency issue and was a
temporary repair. It was not the final item. Where is the final item? The Mayor doesn't
have it there and that's what's disturbing us. We do have more areas that are starting to
deteriorate above me which has been identified by the 400. I've got a couple of pictures
that was in my handout. This is a beautiful example of the ripple effect. If you wanted to
see it as you go up the top end of Piiholo where all the trees are just tearing up the road
left and right, you can pass this one by_ You've got those handouts. It's the same
pictures. So I guess the biggest concern is we have is it almost sounds like something is
broke. The Mayor doesn't know about Piiholo and we're questioning why. I mean the
road is in disastrous shape. What is wrong with the County of Maui that they can't find
out which roads are in disastrous shape and put them into a six-year capital budget?
Something's broke somewheres [sic]. We shouldn't have to be here, the ones telling you
about Piiholo. Somebody in the County should have recognized it and there should have
been action taken years ago. That's my concern. I do appreciate your effort again. We
do request anything you can do to help us in the future. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kleinwachter. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson. Hang
on, Mr. Kleinwachter.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You said the road was twice as bad as it was last year?
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MR. KLEINWACHTER: What's happening is two things. There's a lot of checkerboard, in
other words, holes in the actual road. We've got a lot of construction on Piiholo. There's
a lot of moisture there. The moisture gets through the cracks and beneath the actual road.
The trucks go over it and just tear it up more and more. What we're getting is two
effects. The amount of areas that are being tom up is about twice as much as last year
and the holes, the indentations in the road, are bigger. They're deeper. And they're
therefore causing cars to bottom out in their suspensions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So we allocated 400,000 last year as an emergency effort-MR. KLEINWACHTER: We've seen nothing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
expended at all.

--and it sounds to me like nothing, nothing has been

MR. KLEINWACHTER: Well, I'm not saying anything ... nothing's been expended. Let me
say this much, nothing has been done that we can see as a positive nature. Now, I
imagine there is planning, there is engineering designing being done. We're hoping that a
bid is being going out soon. We're expecting I think a summer repair but there is things
that could have been done that would ease our life. As an example, they never fill any of
these troughs we've got on the roads when they come up to do patching. They patch
about one or two minor little places and away they go. And when you ask them why not,
they said they can't bring up enough patch to fill up those things. I mean Piiholo is
deteriorating left and right. I would love to have you guys drive up there. Please do.
Understand what we're saying.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. KLEINWACHTER: It's an interesting trip.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kleinwachter.
MR. KLEINWACHTER: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any further questions?
MR. KLEINWACHTER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your testimony and your patience.
Ms. Parsons will be followed by Richard Stumpf.
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MS. PARSONS: Hi. I'm Ginny Parsons, and he's right about Piiholo. I mean if you wanted to
go into labor, that would be the best road to ride up and down on. '" (laughter) . ..
I'd like to thank this Council for letting us all come before you because it's very
important that you hear the issues and I'm here again about my favorite subject. I'd like
you to please consider the needs of the County of Maui's Department of Water Supply
with the increases to their budget this year. As you are aware, the Upcountry residents
were ... that are currently being served on a surface water system up here, two of the
systems are on a free chlorine basis, and one of 'em, the Upper Kula System is on a
chloramines system which is chlorine and ammonia.
Even with the suggested rate increases that we have it will be difficult for the Department
to meet the needs for improvement. I guess you all know that we've had some problems
up here. We're gonna be doing a lot of CIP and recently studies have indicated and
recommended a need for a GAC filter, a granulated activated carbon filter. It's a large
huge system that would go prior to the treatment process and that's for the Upper Kula
System and that's the system that's on the chloramines. And if we can put the GAC filter
on there, we can draw back ... hopefully, we'll take out the organic matter and we can
maybe get to the point where we can have all three systems on free chlorine.
This is so important right now. We're in a period of crisis. This is the system that keeps
floating in and out of compliance, and if we don't stay in compliance, we're gonna have
no other choice than to put phosphates back in the water again. And it won't be a
decision that we're gonna want to make but it may be one that the EPA makes us do. So
we have an opportunity right now, if we can call this an emergency, and dip into the
Emergency Funds that exist. And it is an emergency folks. I mean these people have
been suffering for five years up here. You know that we have problems. The problems
are more now in the homes than they were but with the GAC filter it'll help to alleviate
some of those problems by taking the food, the nutrients, out of the surface water before
it goes into the treatment facility. These residents have been suffering for nearly five
years and it's time and they shouldn't be expected to wait any longer for their water to be
improved . . . for the system to be improved. 1'd like you to please consider an
emergency appropriation of funds in order to design and purchase a GAC filter for
Upper Kula System. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Parsons. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Ginny. Thanks for coming. Did you get any kind of
confirmation of the cost - the $2 million that we've heard tonight?
MS. PARSONS: I spoke with Eric this afternoon and he's not sure exactly. He feels that that
may be the rough area but he's waiting for Boyle to give them back. That's probably
design and, and, and filter and installation. He's waiting for Boyle Engineering to give
him some specifics. It just has to be ... they have to figure out what our TOC is, which
is the toxicity levels or the ... and once they figure out what ... where we are there, then
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they can figure out what kind of filtration system it's gonna be. They gotta basically
design it to match our source. So I would say that that's probably gonna be in the area
roughly. Hopefully, by the end of the week. If the Council were to move forward and
say, we're gonna fund this, I want answers, we want answers now, ... I mean I know it's
not gonna ... I don't expect it. I shouldn't say no but I don't expect it to exceed $4
million which is the Emergency Fund. But I expect it to be, you know, it's gonna be a
significant amount because it is a huge machine. But if you're gonna use surface water,
you have to take something to protect the pathogens from getting in. And you have to
protect it and I'll tell you something else I learned which is really interesting. You have
to take 'em out before they get to chlorine because some of these pathogens will split
open if they're killed first with ... before they get to the filtration ... before they get to
the filtration. For instance, if chlorine is before the filtration, and then filtration goes into
the system, they'll split open and toxins will release in the water and you can't filter those
out. So you have to filter them beforehand and get them ... get them out of the system
before they come in.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So $2 million was based on what Eric estimated?
MS. PARSONS: It's from just speaking with Boyle and he's gonna do some other research
work.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you're hoping that you'll have something by the end
of the week?
MS. PARSONS: Hopefully, yes.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: That would be great! There is $1 million in the Budget for
a nitrate facility for Hamakuapoko that we don't need anymore so there's a million bucks.
MS. PARSONS: I like that. Put it right over there. You know, the design is gonna be a big
portion of it. If we don't put this on now, because of all the other CIP that we have, we
may not have this on 'till 2012. I mean that's what we have to ... that's what we're up
against. If we don't call this an emergency and get those funds now, it may be years
before it really gets on and in between that time there's no way with the chloramines up
in that system that we're gonna be able to keep all the balls in the air keep the HPC
down, keep the lead from leeching, and keep the ... and keep the pathogens out of the
water. So ...
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Parsons.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Ginny.
CHAIR KANE: One other question for you. Because I know yourself and a couple of other
testifiers has used the context of declaring the emergency and we can go verify but I think
that the Mayor's the only one authorized to declare an emergency to activate the use of
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Emergency Funds which would then require a super majority of Members to approve
that. So we'll go follow-up because you're using that context and also if it's not included
in the existing proposed Budget, then that's something that we could look at to provide
funding for, but again, it's Administration who has to implement the funding. And if they
see that as not of a priority, and I'm not saying they are or they aren't, but they're the
ones who are going to determine whether a project goes. Just like with Piiholo Road,
$400,000 was put there, but you know, whether or not it's gonna go, we don't know until
it actually starts happening. So, and I know you understand that part so let us go do some
follow-up and we can get back to you.
MS. PARSONS: Maybe a resolution?
CHAIR KANE: There's no force and effect oflaw in a resolution though.
MS. PARSONS: Something to put up ...
CHAIR KANE: It, it nudges. It urges.
MS. PARSONS: As a Board Member, we'll be urging also up to the ninth floor that this be
considered to be an emergency.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, Members, thank you. Next to testify, Richard Stumpf, and
following is Reverend Paul Rambo, I believe.
MR. STUMPF: Good evening and thank you for this opportunity to be heard and also for your
intense patience. I know it's been a long evening. My name is Richard Stumpf and I'm
here to testify for Upcountry tennis in Kula. I know that it seems a little bit picayune
after hearing some potentially catastrophic situations but I want to let you know from the
standpoint of a professional. I've been 38 years dedicated my life to the tennis
profession, 13 of which have been as the Director of Tennis at a luxury resort on the Big
Island of Hawaii, and during that time I was involved in the United States Tennis
Association and also a National Coach for our entire State at an levels of development for
our juniors. And it was nice to see Ms. Barnet [sic] coming up and testifying this
evening. As a matter of fact, I had coached her uncle, Alex, the Junior Nationals when
he was 16 years old.
All of us here have an obligation to not only just the dilettantes that come out and play
tennis as recreation, but also to our juniors and to our seniors. I've been a volunteer for
the AARP and it was nice to see that they're represented this evening. But also I've dealt
with special education children and seen what an incredible effect that tennis has. Most
recently though and more importantly, I've followed my heart and not tennis and I've
relocated to Upcountry Maui from the Big Island. That's been in the last three weeks and
... but now I can see that I'm out of retirement and involved with the tennis community
here. There is no question that the bottom line to everything that I'm talking about is that
certainly the courts . . . the two courts are used . . . that they're used to such an extent
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right now by a vast array of players that it is not enough to run any kind of a serious
program. And I'd like you to all to know that it isn't just the physical attributes of tennis
that I'm speaking about right now but as players we have to take a look at the social and
psychological benefits that tennis has. And out of the 34 reasons that Dr. Jack Groppel,
which is the most, excuse me, the world's renown sports scientist, more than a third of
those were emotional and psychological advantages, not just the physical.
I'd also like to let you know that still tennis is the ... has the highest GPA of any
mainstream sport in the world today and continues to be that way. So I'd like you to take
a look at those considerations also. I'm urging you also to take a look for our seniors that
a major medical university has called, Tennis - The Fountain of Youth, and it literally
stops the aging process if you take it up after 50. So for you people and I know one of
our, I hope that she's still here, that will come on to take some tennis lessons. I
appreciate your time-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. STUMPF: --and I also appreciate your putting some of the money in your Budget this year
for the tennis in Kula. I appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Whoever has a cell phone going off, we'd appreciate that going off. Maybe
somebody's bag. Maybe it's one of the Council Members. I apologize.
MR. STUMPF: That's alright.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions for Mr. Stumpf?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So that means your 95? ... (laughter) . ..
MR. STUMPF: I'm doing quite well with some anti-aging pills playing tennis all the time.
Thank you for your time.
CHAIR KANE: Any other questions? And I thought maybe swimming is a side sport so they
have a better GPA ... I'm just kidding.. , .(laughter) . ..
MR. STUMPF: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Reverend Paul Rambo. Reverend Rambo here? Oh, shucks.
Rosemary Robbins.
That's for Up country tennis so we'll chalk that one up.
Ms. Robbins, and Ms. Robbins will be followed by Michael Peters.
MS. ROBBINS: Aloha. Rosemary Robbins here as a concerned citizen. I also would like to
speak on behalf of having the granulated activated carbon system go in. Of our three
Upcountry water situations, I live in Lower Kula. We're the ones that don't have the
micro-filtration. That's one snag in that three-tier deal. And this one now that's coming
- 63 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 22, 2006 (Pukalani)

up in terms of solution being put in for the higher Upcountry for the Upper Kula one is a
moment in time. I mean the time is here where we really need it and it's a time where if
we can get the emergency funding and thank you for your explanation on that and thank
you for seeing if you can do an ... {inaudible} . .. if that's going to be required on that.
Truly waiting until potentially 1212 [sic] is pretty scary. There are a number of people
who after contaminations in '95 that were identified came down with cancer situations.
Cause and effect to maybe be proven but I'm one of the ones with ovarian cancer and
glad to have it behind me I guess - chemotherapy. And thinking that this could continue
to be a conflict of well-being for the people Upcountry when indeed there is a potential
solution there. Not to wait any longer, yeah. Thank you very much. Be happy to answer
any questions.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Robbins. Any questions for Ms. Robbins? The only question I
have is I know there's been a reference to the year 2012 and so maybe-MS. ROBBINS: Oh, I said 1212.
CHAIR KANE: --if you can ... if you can provide just some brief comment on why is that date
important?
MS. ROBBINS: Okay. In term, well, anything that's later than tomorrow is important because
it's later than tomorrow. But just in temlS of what it's going to take for the planning to go
back into what will then be the circumstances of greater information that we will have in
terms ofthe water, the botany of it, and then the treatment end of it, which is the County's
end of it. We're just gonna have to start all over again on that research. So if we do it
now, we've got it nailed.
CHAIR KANE: And the reason I bring that up is because isn't 2012 when there's gonna be an
additional requirement through EPA?
MS. ROBBINS: Well, that's not a definite but it could be that long.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.

anticipating it's gonna be that, yeah?

MS. ROBBINS: Yeah. They don't act all that fast. Understandably, I mean they don't want to
just leap offbut on the other hand we don't want to wait in the dark forever either.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Thank you. Ms. Robbins, appreciate your comments tonight. Thank you.
MS. ROBBINS: Thank you for all the good work you're doing.
CHAIR KANE: Michael Peters. Good evening, Mr. Peters. And following Mr. Peters is David
Lindsay.

- 64-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

March 22, 2006 (Pukalani)

MR. PETERS: Hello, Council Members. Thank you for listening. I'm here to represent the
Upcountry Kula tennis. I just want to say a few . . . a few points and I'll be done.
Perfection - there are no better courts I believe on this island or perhaps anywhere in the
United States than in Kula. When, when ... I'm in film and video and when everything
comes together, it's a great thing. The weather, the altitude, the ... it's not hot because
the clouds come in during the day. It's approximately 14 to 15 hours per day that you can
play on these courts. No where else on the island ... no where else I believe probably in
the United States you can play that long because the weather just doesn't hold up, well,
barring the four or five weeks of rain we just had, but in general it's fantastic.
And I did play some tournament tennis last season and I just want to give you a quick
story. I was at Maui Memorial and I hit a ball, it went out of bounds, it went over the
fence, the wind was so strong it took the ball back over the fence and it landed six feet
inbounds. I mean it was like ... I was ... this is unbelievable! There is no wind there
which makes it a fantastic place. A fantastic place to invest in a really good quality
product because it just doesn't get any better than Kula. And there's several schools
around. I have a daughter who's interested in playing tennis. Many different age groups
play and it would really be nice to share the experience with more people. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can state your name for the record, please.
MR. PETERS: Michael Peters.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Peters. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thanks for
your testimony this evening. David Lindsay, followed by Bob Johnson.
MR. LINDSAY: Chairman Kane and Council Members, thanks for coming. I'm gonna beat that
Piiholo/Olinda Road situation up some more. I'll tell you how old I am. I learned to
drive on that road when it was a mud road so it's a big improvement - maybe. The first
issue is Alaluana. You have a deathtrap there. It's a dead end road with a very elderly
lady living down there. And there was a fire up there not too long ago which you're
probably aware of. It didn't jump the gulch and come over. But I have fought pine forest
fires and they're not pretty. So I'm concerned about those people on Alaluana having a
dead end road. All the deaths at the Berkeley fire California a few years ago ... all the
deaths were because of dead end roads, as a reminder. They can't get services either.
Mike knows about it.
My second concern. My wife drives to Makawao School every day from the
Piiholo/Olinda junction - that's where I live. . .. (change tape) . .. The bumps caused by
the roots and you got one picture there where the truck wheel sitting up on the bump. I
hit it again today because a car coming down, I had to drive over it, and I can . . . big
clunk. Not fun. And then there's ... along with those ... those are single issues that
could be taken care of without going the whole route. I mean, yeah, I'd love to see it all
paved. But if we get those hazards, people, I've done it too, swing out around that thing
and you've got a curve coming down the other way. One of these days somebody's
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gonna, you know, they have. There's been fender benders already but I'm concerned for
my wife particularly going up and down there every day. Then there's some gullies on at
least two of the curves that are a good six or more inches deep. They corne out and
fill 'ern with rubble and they wash out with the next rain. And if ... I think your best
advice is to go up and drive that road a couple times and you'll see what we mean. It's
not a wide road and you can get pushed over on that gutter pretty easy and that's a
hazard. So it's a real safety concern that we have, genuine ... more than a bump.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. LINDSAY: It's the safety. Then my last question is a concern where I lived at one point.
The City had to take out the speed bumps because the emergency vehicles were ending
up in big trouble. I just carne down Kealaloha. They've got 'ern every 100 yards now,
well, these tables. Well, I agree that probably people are driving too fast there but I can't
imagine an ambulance going through there. The cities up ... I'm talking about with San
Jose and that was back when the firemen used to ride on the back of the truck. After they
flipped a couple of them off, they took 'ern out, legally. So I question that that's a
panacea. So thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Lindsay. Members, any questions for Mr. Lindsay? Hearing
none. Thank you very much for your testimony.
MR. LINDSAY: Actually, I'll give these to you, too.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay, great. Thank you. Yeah, that's the crown jewel the pictures right
there. Thank you, Mr. Lindsay. Mr. Johnson, good evening. And following Mr. Johnson
is HemyLau.
MR. JOHNSON: My name's Bob Johnson and I'm a new resident to Maui. We moved here in
August of last year and one of the main reasons we carne to Maui obviously was the
weather and the chance, in my case, to play tennis year round, and I'm here tonight to
talk about the tennis courts in Kula. When I first moved here, I was sort of desperate to
get some tennis in and so I started driving down to Kihei every day, eight 0' clock in the
morning, seven o'clock in the morning, to get some tennis in 'cause I knew nothing about
the tennis that was going on Upcountry. Luckily, one day on my way down I picked up a
hitchhiker who told me that there were in fact two tennis courts in Kula and that in fact a
lot of people did play there. From that I found out about the situation. I met Steve
Sutrov and found out about, you know, what was happening up there and have to say that
there were two things that really struck me about tennis Up country when I moved here.
Number one was the lack of tennis courts or the shortage of tennis courts, we should say,
and number two was the enthusiasm of the tennis players up here. And I was just totally
amazed at how enthusiastic the players are up here. They enjoy playing with each other.
They're very social. They're just great people to play with. The wonderful thing was we
have ... on Sundays we have adults out there that are anywhere from 75 years old down
to teenage. And the thing that I'm most interested in getting the additional two courts for
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is the fact that the courts do get used. They get used to excess. On some Sundays ...
Sunday mornings, we have 20 people trying to play on those two courts at one time. And
so I just encourage you to include the amount that the Mayor put in the Budget for the
new courts. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Johnson. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony. Henry Lau. Good evening, Mr. Lau. Following is Palmer Purdy.
MR. LAU: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for your patience and for listening to
all of us here. It's almost my bedtime so I'll try to make it short. This is the third time
I've been before the Budget people but this year's a little different because the Mayor's
Budget calls for the tennis courts this year so we're extra vigilant. We want to make sure
that, you know, the Council knows the needs of the tennis players. And I'm the 75 year
old guy they're talking about. But I love tennis. I play two, three times a week and I
played it for about 10 years. Before that I played lot of golf, I was overweight, high
cholesterol, and high blood pressure. Over the years now I could, you know, honestly say
I'm in pretty good shape. I playa lot of tennis. My cholesterol is way down, below 200,
and no blood pressure, I mean good. A lot of other guys, I speak for myself, my family
(we all play), and all the other old guys that are sleeping, we all look forward to the new
courts, yeah. So please kokua. Give us your support. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Lau. . .. (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Lau, this is not a question, but I just had to say it.
My wife is a tennis buff and she belongs to the seniors, as well as the super seniors, and
she enjoys herself. She's retired.
CHAIR KANE: Palmer Purdy. Good evening, Mr. Purdy.
MR. PURDY: Good evening. My name is Palmer Purdy and I'd like to thank all of you for
being here tonight to listen to all of your community concerns that we have here up in the
Upcountry area and thank you very much for being here.
here to testify as a private
citizen, Upcountry, and I'm testifying in support of the GAC filter system for our water.
You all have a very tough decision because there's so many concerns Up country that
needs to be taken care of and there's not enough money to go around so you have to cut
back on the needs and decide which ones are the most important. But what is more
important than water? Water is the basic thing that we need to live. You can't make any
exceptions. You have to decide to have water should be at the top of the agenda. And
when you mentioned about the emergency conditions for funding, you mentioned that the
Mayor is the one that has to enforce this, declare this. Well, if you look at all the news
publications that's been coming out of the Mayor's Office, he's not going to support this.
How can we get this money by, you know, by bypassing him? Is there any way of doing
that? I know he's not gonna I mean call this an emergency situation. So how do we get
the money? We can't wait 'till 2012. We have to do it now. So how can we get the
money? You have any solution for that?
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CHAIR KANE: We're gonna have the discussion, Mr. Purdy. I think what we tried to make
clear is that this body can appropriate money but we have no power to implement the
money to get the thing done. So it's gonna come down to if we can give the money and
that's the discussion we're gonna have, then it's gonna be up to this Administration or any
future Administration to implement that money to get it done.
MR. PURDY: When you say Administration, are you talking about the Mayor?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. PURDY: So how can ...
CHAIR KANE: The Mayor and the Administration.
MR. PURDY: How can we bypass the Mayor because we're not going to get the money from
him? That's definitely, you know, that's definite. So now we're stuck.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There's an election in November.
CHAIR KANE: I stay away from that one.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (Spoke from the audience): ... (inaudible). .. Get 'em out.
MR. PURDY: But we're not going to get the money from him. I know that for a fact. So, you
know, we're kind of stuck in a dilemma here. I mean the water is ... if they reintroduce
phosphates, we're done. We're done and we can't afford that. So we have to get around
the Mayor somehow and I'm looking at you all for any suggestions to do that. So we're
in dire straits right now. We are and we're looking for your help and we ask for your
help. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Purdy. Members, any questions for Mr. Purdy? Hearing none.
Thank you, Mr. Purdy. Appreciate your comments. Nobody else has signed up to testify.
Is there anybody here that has not testified that would like to testify, please come
forward. You can come up to the microphone, introduce yourself, and once you're done,
then you can see our Staff and we'll make sure you get signed up. And Mr. Sutrov, we
have not forgotten you, but we need to make sure that we make everybody else who
hasn't had that opportunity have their chance. Good evening, sir.
MR. WILSON: Good evening. Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for your time.
I'm here in support of the ... oh, my name is Steve Wilson. I'm an Upcountry farmer. I
drive the Olinda Road everyday. I've got a great solution. Go down to Omaopio, take
some of the ... on that bad tum, make a big dip there, and you can fill in some of their
potholes up there. But actually I'm here for to ask for your support and your continued
support in the funding for the Maui Farm Bureau and the things that we do at the Farm
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Bureau help the whole community a lot of the people and things that I hear about today
and the kids and the children. We have ... are implementing programs along those same
lines that we can get together, you know, and help raise better kids by getting them on the
farms and that's through the Maui Economic Opportunities that we get from you folks
that help us in these ventures. And thank you for your support and continued support.
Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Wilson. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you,
sir. Is there anybody else who has not testified that would like to? Now is your
opportunity. And seeing nobody approach, Mr. Sutrov, we'll have you sign another form
after you're done.
MR. SUTROV: Name is Steve Sutrov. Excuse me, I'd like to make a statement here for my ...
as a proud father and a thankful father, this is from my daughter. I'd like to read it and
make this clear that this is my daughter's writing that I'm reading.
Dear County Council, I'm 23 year old, born and raised on Maui, and completed my
college education in Canada. On March 4th , 2006, I opened my own art gallery, Sutrov
Gallery, in Paia General Store Building on Hana Highway. This career allows me to stay
on Maui, paint and exhibit my own work. I'm now a businesswoman, as well as an artist.
The guidance and referrals provided by Maui Economic Development Board
Incorporated, especially from Tom Liu and David Fisher of the Small Business
Development Corporate ... Council, were instrumental in making this happen. I ask that
the Maui Economic Development Board, Incorporated, be funded so these people can
continue to assist other businesses. Mahalo, Margaret T. Sutrov, owner.
That's from my daughter. Definitely, I want to be thankful that they assisted my daughter
in finding work but more than that. And please fund them to be able to help others doing
the same.
Also, I'd like to give my other daughter equal time here and she was a MAPA prodigy.
She went to Maui Performing Arts for years and helped her gain great self-esteem and
skill enough to where she has been applying now to theatre arts and musical theatres top ones in the country right now. And that's Christina and Mike knows Christina. And
so I'm very proud of her and because ... please fund MAPA whenever you have an
opportunity to because it's a great group of people, great strong organization, and they do
great work with our youth on Maui. That's about it. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Steve. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you very
much for your testimony. You could have probably squeezed that in to your first one, but
that's okay, we're all done.
MR. SUTROV: .. .{inaudible} . ..
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CHAIR KANE: No, no. You're fine, you're fine .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Ladies and gentlemen, who remain, thank you very much. We appreciate you
coming out to testify.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: GRH, JJ, and CT)
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE: This public hearing for March 22 nd and before we adjourn we will be tomorrow
night in Paia, Members, I believe? We're gonna be in Paia at 6:00 ... 6:00. We will also
be in the Council Chambers tomorrow morning from 9:00 until 3:30. This meeting is
adjourned. .., (gavel). ..

ADJOURN:

9:30p.m.
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